
 
NOTICE OF MEETING 

 

Haringey Schools Forum 

 
 
THURSDAY 22 FEBRUARY 2018 AT 15:45 HRS FOR 16:00 HRS –   PROFESSIONAL  
DEVELOPMENT CENTRE, DOWNHILLS PARK ROAD, TOTTENHAM, LONDON, N17 6AR 
 
 
 
AGENDA 
 
 
1.  CHAIR'S WELCOME    
 
2.  APOLOGIES AND SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS    
 
 Clerk to report. 

 
3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST    
 
 Declarations are only required where an individual member of the Forum has a 

pecuniary interest in an item on the agenda.  
 

4. MINUTES OF THE MEETINGS OF  17 JANUARY 2018  (PAGES 1 - 6)  
 
5.  MATTERS ARISING    
 
6. 2018/19 DEDICATED SCHOOLS BUDGET  (PAGES 7 - 26)  
 
 To update Schools Forum of the Dedicated Schools Budget for 2018-19 

 
 

7. THE SCHOOLS INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRAMME  (PAGES 27 - 32)  
 
 To advise the Schools Forum of the programme of internal audit work to be  

undertaken in 2018/19. 
 

 
8. 2017 -18 GROWTH FUND UPDATE  (PAGES 33 - 36)  
 
 To inform members of the Growth Fund liabilities for 2017-18. 

 
 



 

2 

9. SCHEME FOR FINANCING SCHOOLS  (PAGES 37 - 92)  
 
 To update Schools Forum of the Scheme for Financing Schools 

 
10.  SCHOOLS FINANCIAL VALUE STANDARDS  (PAGES 93 - 96)  
 
 To inform the Forum of the update for the 2017-18 Guidance for Schools  

Financial Value Standards. 
 

11.  UPDATE FROM RESTRUCTURE SCRUTINY PANEL  (PAGES 97 - 98)  
 
 To provide an update on work of the Restructure and Scrutiny Panel from 

September 2017 to the current time. 
 

 
12. WORK PLAN 2017/18  (PAGES 99 - 100)  
 
 To inform the Forum of the proposed work plan for 2017-18 and provide 

members with an opportunity to add additional items. 
 

 
 
  

 
 
 
 
 



MINUTES OF THE SCHOOLS FORUM MEETING  
WEDNESDAY 17 JANUARY 2018 

Schools Members: 
Headteachers: 
Special (1) *Martin Doyle (Riverside)  

Nursery Schools (1) *Peter Catling (Woodlands Park)  

Primary (7) *Adrian Hall (Rhodes Avenue) *Cal Shaw (Stroud Green) 

 *Dawn Ferdinand, (The Willow) *Fran Hargrove (St Mary‟s CE) 

 *Julie D‟Abreu (Devonshire Hill) *Emma Murray (Seven Sisters) 

 *Will Wawn (Bounds Green)  

Secondary (2) * Andy Webster (Parkview) *Tony Hartney (Gladesmore)   

Primary Academy (1) (A)Sharon Easton (St Paul‟s and All Hallows) 

Secondary Academies (2) *Elma McElligott (Woodside) (A)Michael McKenzie (Alexandra Park) 

Alternative Provision Vacancy   

 
Governors: 
Special (1) *Jean Brown (The Vale)  

Children’s Centres (1) *Melian Mansfield (Pembury)  

Primary (7) (A) Jenny Thomas (Lordship Lane) *Andreas Adamides (Stamford Hill) 

 *John Keever (Seven Sisters) *Hannah D‟Aguir (Chestnuts Primary) 

 *Laura Butterfield (Coldfall) *Lorna Walker (Rokesly Infants) 

 *Zena Brabazon (Seven Sisters)  

Secondary (3) *Johanna Hinshelwood (Hornsey Girls) Vacancy 

 *Terrence Sullivan (Park View)  

Primary Academy (1) (A) Natasha Lewis (St Ann‟s) 

Secondary Academies (2) *Noreen Graham (Woodside) Vacancy 

 

Non School Members:- 
Non – Executive Councillor *Cllr Ann Waters 

Professional Association Representative (A) Ed Harlow 

Trade Union Representative *Pat Forward 

14-19 artnership (A) Russ Lawrence 

Early Years Providers *Susan Tudor-Hart 

Faith Schools  *Geraldine Gallagher  

Pupil Referral Unit (A) Clare Macdonald  

   
   

Observers: -  
Cabinet Member for CYPS *Cllr Elin Weston 

 
Also attending: 

LBH Interim Director of Children‟s Services Margaret Dennison 

LBH Joint Assistant Director, Schools and Learning James Page 

LBH Joint Assistant Director, Schools and Learning Eveleen Riordan 

LBH Assistant Director, Quality Assurance, Early Help & Prevention Gill Gibson 

LBH Senior Business Partner Paul Durrant 

LBH Finance Business Partner (Schools and Learning) Yoke O‟Brien 

LBH Head of SEN and Disability  Vikki Monk –Myer 

LBH Early Years Commissioning Manager  Ngozi Anuforo 

The Alternative Provision Commissioner  Deborah Tucker 

LBH Principal Education Welfare Officer & Traded Services Manager Michael Welton  

LBH Governance Services Manager Carolyn Banks 

Haringey Clerk (minutes)  Jonathan Adamides-Vellapah 

 
Haringey attendees 

Chi Wong Kamaljit Kaur Johannah Hunt 

   

  *    Members present 
   (A)   Apologies given 

Page 1 Agenda Item 4



MINUTES OF THE SCHOOLS FORUM MEETING  
WEDNESDAY 17 JANUARY 2018 

 
MINUTE 
No. 

SUBJECT/DECISION ACTION 
BY 

1. CHAIR’S WELCOME  

1.1 The Vice-Chair opened the meeting and the Chair arrived at item:6 
 

 

2. APOLOGIES AND SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS  

2.1 Apologies: Received and accepted. 
 

 

2.2 Substitutions: There were none 
 

 

3. DECLARATION OF INTEREST   

3.1 Declarations were noted Laura Butterfield item 9b. 
 

 

4. MINUTES OF THE MEETINGS 07 DECEMBER 2017  

4.1 The minutes of the 7 December 2017 meeting were approved. 
 
NOTED: Martin Doyle gave an update on the Grove School. 
 

 

5. MATTERS ARISING 07 DECEMBER 2017   

5.1 The matters arising were completed. 
 

 

6. DEDICATED SCHOOLS GRANT (DSG)  

6.1 The Finance Business Partner (Yoke O‟Brien) presented the paper which 
gave an overview of the following: 

 An update on the forecast outturn for the DSG in the current financial 
year (2017-18) and the reserves position for Schools Forum to note 

 An update on the final DSG allocation for Schools, Early Years, High 
Needs and Central Schools Services Blocks in 2018/19 

 Request for Schools Forum to agree the recommended Option A (ii) 
for the local schools funding formula in 2018/19 

 De-delegated funding with a request to maintained primary and 
secondary schools to agree to de-delegate funding for Attendance 
and Welfare in 2018/19. 

 
The Forum noted that the work of the Schools Finance Teams and members 
in preparing and reviewing the data. The allocations had to be reworked at 
the final stages due to incorrect data being received from the DfE. The 
proposed allocations were sent to schools and a positive response was 
received from schools. 
 

 

6.2 The Forum noted: 

 Modelling of the DSG and the allocated blocks 

 The overview and summary breakdown of funding within each block 

 The explanation of the 2018/19 Haringey Schools Funding Formula 

 The principles agreed by the Forum on 7 December for the local 
funding formula and how the options presented reflected the changes 
from the EFSA and other financial adjustment, to produce the options. 

 

 

6.3 The Forum noted the presentation from Principal Education Welfare Officer 
and Traded Services Manager (Michael Welton). Members understood that 
there was a for 2017/18 a discounted offer for maintained schools.  

 

 RESOLVED: Schools Forum noted the forecast closing position for the  

Page 2



MINUTES OF THE SCHOOLS FORUM MEETING  
WEDNESDAY 17 JANUARY 2018 

 

DSG with an overall minimum expected surplus of £720k in DSG 
reserves.  
 

 RESOLVED: Schools Forum agreed the proposal to use both Schools 
Block and Early Years Block reserves to balance the projected 
overspend in High Needs, with a commitment from Schools Block to 
‘repay’ Early Years the same amount in 2018-19. 
 

 

 RESOLVED: Schools Forum agreed the changes to the local schools 
funding formula for 2018/19 in line with Option A (ii), which includes:  
(a) +0.5% MFG 
(b) +0.5% cap with 100% scaling 
(c) Set 2018-19 Growth Fund at £985,369.96 
(d) No transfer from Schools Block to High Needs Block in 2018-19 
(e)Transfer £488,247.75 which is +0.25% of 2018-19 Schools Block DSG 
from Schools Block DSG Reserves in 2017-18 or 2017-18 to High Needs 
Block.  
 

 

 RESOLVED: Haringey’s maintained primary school Schools Forum 
representatives agreed to de-delegate funding for Attendance and Welfare.  
 
UPDATED: Subsequent to the meeting there was a challenge to the 
voting outcome. Consequently, the Local Authority will submit the 
budget to the APT portal without the de-delegation of Attendance and 
Welfare Service for Primary schools. 
 
The matter will be reconsidered at the next Forum meeting, and should 
the Forum decide to go ahead then the funds would be taken out of 
schools’ cash flows from April. 
 

 
 
YO‟B 

 RESOLVED: Haringey’ s maintained secondary school Schools Forum 
representatives agreed to de-delegate funding for Attendance and 
Welfare. 
 

 

7. EARLY YEARS BLOCK GRANT 2018/19 BUDGET  

7.1 Head of Early Help Commissioning & Culture (Ngozi Anuforo) presented the 
paper which outlined the key activities and challenges for 2017/18. 
 
Forum members noted the 2018/19 budget proposal and the changes that 
will take effect through the EFSA caps on centrally retained funds. For 
2018/19 the universal base rate will be £4.99 per hour. 
 
The Forum were advised that the figures presented are indicative as the 
EFSA does have a recoupment policy in place based on the take-up of 
entitlement. 
  

 

 RESOLVED: Schools Forum noted the indicative funding for the Early 
Years Block in 2018/19. 
 

 

 RESOLVED: Schools Forum agreed the proposed allocations of the 
Early Years Block for 2018/19. 

 

 RESOLVED: Schools Forum noted and agreed the proposed budget  

Page 3



MINUTES OF THE SCHOOLS FORUM MEETING  
WEDNESDAY 17 JANUARY 2018 

 

allocation for centrally retained funds for 2018/19. 
 

 RESOLVED: Schools Forum noted the priority actions for 2018/19. 
 

 

8. HIGH NEEDS BLOCK GRANT 2018/19 BUDGET  

8.1 The Head of Service SEN and Disability presented the paper which gave an 
overview of the current financial position of the High Needs Block and 
proposals for 2018/19. 
 
The Forum discussed and noted the work that has been undertaken to 
manage and review the spending to make the best use of resources and 
work closely to develop the provision where possible within the borough. 
 
The Forum discussed the needs emerging and the use of maintained 
provision to support the inclusion and the development of support services 
provision to ensure needs are met from early years through to college 
placements.  
 

 

 RESOLVED: Schools Forum noted the forecast overspend on the High 
Needs Block for 2017/18 and noted the actions being taken to address 
this. 
 

 

 RESOLVED: Schools Forum noted the continued work to implement 
the DSG strategy which will affect the overall DSG and the High Needs 
Block budget and spend from the next year. 
 

 

9. ARRANGEMENT FOR THE USE OF PUPIL REFERRAL UNIT AND THE 
EDUCATION OF CHILDREN OTHERWISE THAN AT SCHOOL  
 

 

9.1 The Alternative Provision Commissioner (Deborah Tucker) presented the 
report, which updated the Forum on the Pupil Referral Provision and the 
provision of Primary Outreach Services ate the Octagon Alternative 
Provision. 
 
The Forum noted that: 

 TBAP have had their contact extended for an additional two years 
until August 2019 

 The Octagon will be redesigned to accommodate 10 Secondary 
places and the funding has been secured from section 106 funding  

 The SEND place number at the Octogen for 2018/19 will increase 
from 58 to 68, with 14 places being designated for EHCP students. of 
the 14 places, 4 will be for Primary aged students. 

 A consultation will be held by the LA to determine the Alternative 
Provision post August 2019. 

 
The Forum discussed the report and agreed that it would be valuable to 
have an understanding of what Alternative Provision looks like in other 
boroughs as a means of benchmarking and evaluating the Haringey model. 
This could form part of future papers to help validate decision making.  
 

 

 RESOLVED: The Schools Forum noted the paper.  

9.b HARINGEY TUITION SERVICE  

Page 4



MINUTES OF THE SCHOOLS FORUM MEETING  
WEDNESDAY 17 JANUARY 2018 

 

9b.1 The Joint Assistant Director for Schools and Learning (Eveleen Riordan) 
presented the paper. The Forum noted that a review had been carried out 
which included: 

 Status of and purpose of the service 

 Admission arrangements 

 The condition of the Tuition service estate across the sites 

 Funding and budget management (including the delegation of 
budgets and the scheme of delegation)  

 Future funding and payment for external placements 

 Commissioning of places/hours. 
 
The Forum were advised that where possible immediate action has been 
taken with the longer term being delivered.  A further update will be 
presented on progress to the next meeting 
  

 ER 

 RESOLVED: The Schools Forum noted the paper and agreed to add the 
update to the Work plan. 
 

 

10. EARLY HELP AND PREVENTATIVE SERVICES UPDATE  

10.1 The Head of Service: Early Help and Prevention (Gareth Morgan) provided a 
paper, which was presented by Jenny Thomas. 
 
The Forum agreed to redact the entire section 2. „The recent Ofsted JTAI…. 
as the most up to date report had not been circulated. 
 
The Forum noted the following: 

 The report highlighted the impact and range of support from the Early 
Help Service as part of wider early help provision 

 That the team had worked extensively on the offer to schools and all 
schools now have a named support worker. 

 There had been an increase in both the number and range and the 
reach of cases. 

 
Officers agreed to provide information on the types of issues and reasons for 
referrals to Early help. LBH Assistant Director, Quality Assurance, Early 
Help & Prevention (Gill Gibson) emphasised the importance of linking with 
other areas such as Homes for Haringey, Education Welfare and 
acknowledged that a core piece of work planned was around ensuring that 
there was joined up data sharing. 
 
LBH Assistant Director, Quality Assurance, Early Help & Prevention (Gill 
Gibson) agreed to circulate breakdown of exhibitors from the “Routes to 
Work Careers Fair” held in November 2017 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
GG 
 

 RESOLVED: Schools Forum noted the adaptation, progress and impact 
of Early Help as part of Haringey’s continuum of support. 
 

 

11. WORK PLAN 2017/18  

 The Forum noted the Work Plan.   

12. UPDATE FROM WORKING PARTIES  

 The Forum noted the updates covered elsewhere under the agenda.  

Page 5



MINUTES OF THE SCHOOLS FORUM MEETING  
WEDNESDAY 17 JANUARY 2018 

 

  

13. ANY OTHER URGENT BUSINESS   

 As there was no further business the meeting closed. 
 

 

14. DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS 

 22 February 2018  

 17 May 2018 

 12 July 2018 

 

 
 
 

Page 6



 

Schools Forum 22nd February 2018 – 2018-19 Dedicated Schools Budget 
 

1 

 

  
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Report to Haringey Schools Forum – Thursday 22nd February 2018 
 

 
Report Title: 2018-19 Dedicated Schools Budget 
 

 
Authors:   
 
Paul Durrant – Head of Finance, Children, Schools and Adults 
Contact:  020 8489 3248 Email:  Paul.durrant@haringey.gov.uk  
 
Kamaljit Kaur – Finance Business Partner - Schools and Learning 
Contact: 0208 489 1263  Email: Kamaljit.kaur@haringey.gov.uk 
 

 
Purpose:  
 
To update Schools Forum of the Dedicated Schools Budget for 2018-19 
 

 
Recommendation: 
 
Schools Forum is recommended: 

1. To note the DSG Revenue Position to January 2018 
2. To note the status and timetable for the release of budget information 

for schools by the local authority. 
3. Haringey’s maintained primary school Schools Forum representatives 

agree to de-delegate funding for Attendance and Welfare  
 

 

 

 

 
 
Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) 

Agenda Item 6 

Report Status 
 
For information/note     
For consultation & views  

For decision    

 

 

  

Page 7 Agenda Item 6

mailto:Paul.durrant@haringey.gov.uk
mailto:Kamaljit.kaur@haringey.gov.uk


 

Schools Forum 22nd February 2018 – 2018-19 Dedicated Schools Budget 
 

2 

 

 
1.1. The Department for Education announced the schools funding settlement 

for 2018/18 in December 2017 and Schools Forum considered the position 
at its meeting on 17th January 2017.  The Dedicated Schools Budget 
substantially funded from the Dedicated Schools Grant, a ring-fenced grant 
and must be spent only in accordance with the prevailing Schools and 
Early Years Funding Regulations. 
 

1.2. Further information on the details of the strategic financial position for the 
Dedicated Schools Budget can be found in the papers to the December 
2017 and January 2018 Schools Forum, which are publicly available. 

 
1.3. Cabinet agreed the use of the DSG on 18th February 2018 as set out in 

sections 1-6 of this report, which generally conveys the information 
provided to Cabinet, with some updates on particular items. 

 
2. Schools Funding for 2018/19 (Dedicated Schools Budget) 

 
2.1. The settlement was a headline increase in the overall DSG of £4.7m from 

£249.8m to £254.5m. This increase is due to additional pupil numbers, 
provision for the extension of early year‟s provision to 30 hours for 3 and 4 
year olds. Also some transfers of responsibilities from other funding 
streams and some additional funding for 2 year olds, high needs budgets 
and maintained nursery schools (who would otherwise have acute 
difficulties in managing the required changes to the early years funding 
formula).  

 Table 1. below, sets out the details of those movements. 
 

Table 1. Explanation of change in overall DSG from 2017/18 
 

DSG allocations prior to deductions for 
academies recoupment and direct 
funding of high needs places by EFA 

2017/18 
DSG 

Rebasing 
(October 

2017) 

Pupil 
numbers 
and High 

Needs 
2018/19 

Early 
Years 
Block 

changes 
2018/19 

DSG 

Schools block 195.29 -1.18 1.19   195.30 

Provisional Early Years Block 18.67     1.60 20.26 

High Needs Block allocation 35.85 -0.05 0.00   35.80 

Central School Services Block 0.00       3.09 

Total DSG allocation 249.81 -1.23 1.19 1.60 254.46 

 
 

2.2. Schools Forum at January 2018 meeting was asked to note that unspent 
DSG from previous years brought forward  was £2.8m brought forward at 
the start of 2017/18.   
 

Page 8



 

Schools Forum 22nd February 2018 – 2018-19 Dedicated Schools Budget 
 

3 

 

2.3. During 2017/18, the Early Years‟ service has been funding 2-year-old 
providers at £6 per hour, rather than the £5.28 received through the DSG; 
this draws on £0.4m of the brought forward.  In 2017/18 DSG, there is a 
projected overspend of £848k in the High Needs block which will be funded 
from underspend on School and Early Year block as DSG remains legally a 
single statutory grant which has to balance overall.  
 
Table 2. Amount of unspent DSG brought forward and expected 
carried forward in 2018/19 
 

Block  
Brought 
forward 
2017/18 

In-year 
budget 

2017/18 

Forecast 
spend 

2017/18 

Forecast 
carry-

forward 
2018/19 

 

  £m £m £m £M 

Schools Block  0.82 136.43 135.33 (1.10) 

High Needs Block 0 34.08 34.93 0.85 

Early Years Block 1.98 18.67 17.83 (0.84) 

Total Schools 
Budget 

2.80 189.18 188.09 (1.09) 

 
3. Schools Block 

 
3.1. The Schools Block allocation for 2018/19 is £195.30m.  Schools Forum 

agreed the centrally retained budgets and those elements of funding which 
could be de-delegated from maintained schools‟ budgets.  Appendix 1 
sets out the figures arising from their decisions for all the blocks. 

 
3.2. The formula for primary and secondary schools been submitted to the 

Education Funding Agency on 19th January 2018, using an Authority 
Proforma Tool (i.e. a spreadsheet).  

 
3.3. The formula allocates £194.02m to schools, after all agreed deductions.  

This represents a tight funding settlement for schools.  While the DSG 
settlement recognised growth in pupil numbers and individual schools will 
be funded for changes in pupil numbers, 32 out of 77 schools will receive 
budgets that rely on the Minimum Funding Guarantee of their 2018/19 
budget per pupil higher by 0.5%. 
 
 

 
Table 3 Comparative distribution of funding 2017/18 and 2018/19 

  Actual APT  Proposed  2018/19 

   17/18   18/19 APT  v 2017/18 

  £’000  £’000 £’000 

Age-Weighted pupil units 143,579 145,049 1,470 

Page 9



 

Schools Forum 22nd February 2018 – 2018-19 Dedicated Schools Budget 
 

4 

 

Deprivation factors  21,403 21,003 -400 

Other formula funding 22,925 24,881 1,956 

Total before MFG 187,907 190,933 3,026 

Prior Year Adjustments 
  

0 

MFG capping -16 -740 -724 

MFG support 3,152 4,121 969 

Total after MFG 191,043 194,314 3,271 

Less De-delegation -908 -296 612 

Less Central  Services -122 0 122 

Total distributed to schools 190,013 194,018 4,005 

Number of schools needing 
MFG support 28 32 4 

 
4. Early Years Block 
 
4.1. All Early Years settings will be notified of their universal base rate of £4.99 

per hour per child plus deprivation rate based on the child‟s eligibility of the 
deprivation factor by the middle of March 2018. This indicative allocation 
will be the based on the data of Haringey‟s pupils collected in May 2017, 
October 2017 and January 2018 census. Please note that the March 2018 
one is an indicative allocation and will be adjusted termly following the 
collection of the termly Early Years census at the school. 
 

5. High Needs Block 
 

5.1. Special Schools and Resource Units in Mainstream Schools will be issued 
with their agreed Place Funding allocation by the end of February 2018. 
This is the £10,000 per agreed place approved by the Education Funding 
Agency. 

 
5.2. Special Schools, Resource Units in Mainstream Schools and statements in 

Mainstream Schools will be issued with their Indicative Top up Funding 
allocation by the middle of March 2018. This will be the based on the 
indicative data of Haringey‟s pupils collected at the end of autumn 2017 
and October 2017 census. Please note that this is an indicative allocation 
and will be adjusted during 2018-18 based on number of Haringey‟s 
statements at the school. 
 

6. Attendance and Welfare 
 

6.1. It was further agreed that the Education Welfare Service (EWS) would make 
a case for continuing the £122k de-delegated funding at Schools Forum in 
January 2018. The case is set out below with a recommendation that this be 
continued to continue to deliver an effective service which supports 
vulnerable children and young people in the Borough.  

Page 10



 

Schools Forum 22nd February 2018 – 2018-19 Dedicated Schools Budget 
 

5 

 

 
6.2. EWS undertakes the Local Authority‟s statutory duty to ensure children 

registered at our schools attend on a regular basis (as per sections 436 – 
447 of the 1996 Education act and subsequent amendments). The service 
offers additional and discretionary casework in order to improve attendance 
with both referred families and in a preventative capacity. The service also 
offers advice, guidance and register inspections to maintained schools in 
order to support and challenge schools to ensure schools fulfil their statutory 
obligations in relation to school attendance. 
 

6.3. The EWS budget also funds the LA‟s Elective Home Education (EHE) 
Advisory Teacher who assesses the quality of education of EHE children, and 
contributes significantly to safeguarding by ensuring that these children are 
„seen‟ and any safeguarding concerns reported to Childrens‟ Social Care. 
Withdrawal of funding may therefore have a significant impact on our ability to 
safeguard this very vulnerable cohort. 
 

6.4. A reduction in EWS budget would result in a reduced offer to schools in 
relation to supporting improvements in pupil attendance. A significant 
reduction in the EWS budget would result in the service offering statutory 
duties only. This would necessarily be restricted to: 

 
(a) enforcement (court action) 
(b) enforcement (penalty notices) 
(c) child licencing 
(d) working jointly with schools to locate missing children.  

 
6.5. The service currently receives £601k in funding, made up as follows:  

 
(a) £122,000 de-delegated 
(b) £172,000 centrally retained (agreed as part of CSSB in 2018-19)  
(c) £177,000 from High Needs  
(d) approximately £130,000 in traded income 

 
6.6. Restructuring the service and the resulting inability to achieve significant 

income through trading would further reduce the service‟s budget. 
 

6.7. Working to improve the attendance of our pupils is a key aspect in ensuring 
that our children receive the best start in life. Research has clearly 
demonstrated links between irregular school attendance and lower academic 
achievement even with relatively low levels of absenteeism. This is evident in 
SATs and GCSE results. There is also clear evidence of links with poor life 
outcomes, such as involvement in crime and anti-social behaviour, teenage 
pregnancy, drug and alcohol misuse and in the perpetuation of cycles of 
deprivation and poverty. 

 
6.8. The service comprises a team manager, 6.5 Education Welfare Officers, 0.5 

Child Performance Licencing Officer, 1 Administration Officer and a part time 

Page 11



 

Schools Forum 22nd February 2018 – 2018-19 Dedicated Schools Budget 
 

6 

 

Elective Home Education Advisory Teacher. Education Welfare Officers are 
allocated to schools that trade with the service, and will undertake to improve 
individual pupil attendance through casework. Where this is unsuccessful, 
cases are progressed to consideration of enforcement actions in order to 
persuade parents to ensure that their children attend school regularly. This 
includes the issuing of penalty notices and legal proceedings through the 
courts.  

 
6.9. Specifically, EWS conducts 'missing child' enquiries prior to deletion from 

registers; investigates reasons for absence and undertakes agreed actions 
accordingly; undertakes safeguarding home visits in relation to children 
missing from school; home visits to investigate reasons for absence and will 
work with schools to offer preventative early help casework. Additionally, 
EWS will provide information, advice and guidance in relation to deletions 
from registers and use of register codes in order to remain compliant with 
legislation; provide support and advice in relation to school strategies to 
address specific periods of absence; attend professionals‟ meetings 
(including child protection conferences) as and when required. EWS work to 
improve whole school attendance, including participation at whole school 
assemblies and parents evenings; „late gate‟ checks to address punctuality 
problems and early intervention attendance clinics. EWS also offers whole 
school data analysis; supporting schools to implement whole school 
attendance and absence policies and procedures; training sessions for 
attendance staff; training for governors and pre-Ofsted support (this list is not 
exhaustive). 

 
6.10. The service cannot make the claim that attendance at Haringey‟s schools 

has improved over the years solely due to the work of the EWS. As the 
service works in partnership with attendance staff at schools, but the service 
has made a significant and valuable contribution to improving attendance, at 
both whole school and individual pupil level, and continues to do so. The 
Education Welfare Service also contributes significantly to ensuring that our 
pupils are safeguarded. This includes conducting enquiries into the 
whereabouts of pupils that are reported as missing by schools. Missing pupil 
referrals represent approximately 50% of all referrals to the service. 

 
6.11. The data for the past 5 years indicates an increase in the numbers of pupils 

referred as irregular attenders or as missing from education. In total, over the 
last 5 years, 2,917 pupils have been formally referred to the Education 
Welfare Service, in addition to work on behalf of schools that did not require 
a referral. The number of referrals to the service 2012-2013 to 2016-2017: 

 

Year Poor Attendance Missing/Non-
returners 

Totals 

2012-2013 292 268 560 

2013-2014 268 248 516 

2014-2015 296 247 543 

2015-2016 323 309 632 

Page 12



 

Schools Forum 22nd February 2018 – 2018-19 Dedicated Schools Budget 
 

7 

 

2016-2017 303 363 666 

Totals 1482 1435 2917 

 
6.12. Of these referrals to the service, the following enforcement actions resulted: 

 

Year Court Cases Court Assessment 
Meetings 

Fixed Penalty 
Notices 

2011-2012 74 138 21 

2012-2013 115 154 79 

2013-2014 88 135 140 

2014-2015 74 126 132 

2015-2016 89 160 125 

2016-2017 100 152 191 

Totals 540 865 688 

 
6.13. This totals 2,093 individual enforcement actions during the last 6 years, an 

average of 349 enforcement actions per year on behalf of Haringey‟s schools 
during this period.   

 
6.14. To add some attendance data to this information, here are the attendance 

percentages for the last 5 full years (most recent that are available from DfE 
for 6 half terms): 

 
 

 Haringey 
Primary 

National 
Primary 

Haringey 
Secondary 

National 
Secondary 

2011-2012 95.4% 95.6% 94.6% 94.1% 

2012-2013 95.2% 95.3% 94.7% 94.1% 

2013-2014 95.7% 96.1% 95.1% 94.8% 

2014-2015 95.8% 96.0% 94.8% 94.7% 

2015-2016 95.9% 96.0% 94.7% 94.8% 

 
 
 

 

Page 13



 

Schools Forum 22nd February 2018 – 2018-19 Dedicated Schools Budget 
 

8 

 

 
 

Continued funding of EWS from de-delegated budget: 
 

6.15. The loss of £122,000 would represent a significant impact on the staffing of 
EWS as a restructure would be necessary and the loss of 2-3 staff would 
impact on EWS ability to trade with schools to make up the shortfall, 
potentially leading to further restructures. It may also impact on the EHE 
officer as she is currently only employed on a part time basis. Given EWS 
contribution to safeguarding, the loss of £122,000 may impact on our ability 
to safeguard children as well as our ability to improve the attendance of both 
referred and non-referred pupils. 

 
6.16. Reduced funding for the service would necessarily result in experienced 

EWOs leaving the council; a loss of expertise and experience, and would 
necessarily reduce the amount and range of work undertaken by the 
remaining EWOs on behalf of schools. This would have an impact on 
individual pupil attendance, as EWS focus would have to be on fulfilling the 
LA‟s statutory duties rather than on casework and support to individual 
families. The more extensive levels of support, currently traded to some 
schools, would have to cease as EWOs would no longer have the capacity to 
dedicate large amounts of time to schools; rather, their focus would have to 
be on more entrenched cases. This would have a knock-on impact on whole 
school attendance levels, in additional to a negative impact on the LA‟s ability 
to safeguard vulnerable children. 

 
6.17. An end to the funding of the Education Welfare Service would result in 

officers undertaking statutory duties only. This would mean school staff 
undertaking the large swathe of attendance work as detailed above. 
Additionally, any enforcement action that entailed legal action would require 
school staff to complete the required court paperwork, and where necessary, 
to attend court to provide live evidence during trials. This is currently work 
undertaken by the Education Welfare Service.  

 
Re-arranged offer to maintained schools: 
 

Page 14



 

Schools Forum 22nd February 2018 – 2018-19 Dedicated Schools Budget 
 

9 

 

6.18. It is recognised that de-delegated funding is agreed and paid by maintained 
schools, but both maintained schools and academies benefit. Therefore, 
EWS discretionary services would be offered to maintained schools at a 
discount. From 2017-2018, EWS services to maintained schools would be 
priced at a level lower than the current 2016-2017 prices; the same services 
to academies and free schools would be priced at the same level as this 
year. Services for schools outside of Haringey would be more expensive. 

 
6.19. Additionally, maintained schools would receive a termly attendance “health 

check” from an EWO. In addition to a register check and advice/guidance in 
relation to identified cases of concern, the time spent during the visit to 
school by the EWO could be used however the school wished. This may be 
used to operate a “late gate”, meet parents, brief staff or governors etc. 

 
Recommendation 3:  
Haringey’s maintained primary school Schools Forum representatives 
agree to de-delegate funding for Attendance and Welfare. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 OTHER ESFA GRANTS 
 

7. Pupil Premium Grant 
 

7.1 The rates per eligible pupil for pupil premium in 2018 to 2019 will be 
maintained at their current rates. EFA will calculate the allocation using: 

 the number of pupils recorded on the January 2018 school census who 
are Ever 6 FSM (not eligible for the LAC and post-LAC premium)  

 post-LAC pupils  

 Ever 6 service child FTE pupils aged 4 and over in year groups 
reception to year 11 
  

7.2 The PPG per pupil for 2018 to 2019 is as follows: 
 
 

Disadvantaged pupils 
Pupil 

premium per 

Page 15



 

Schools Forum 22nd February 2018 – 2018-19 Dedicated Schools Budget 
 

10 

 

pupil 

Pupils in year groups reception to year 6 as 
recorded as Ever 6 FSM  

£1,320 

Pupils in years 7 to 11 recorded as Ever 6 FSM  £935 

Looked after children (LAC) defined in Children Act 
1989 as one who is in the care of, or provided with 
accommodation by, an English local authority 

£2,300 

Children who have ceased to be looked after by a 
local authority in England and Wales because of 
adoption, a special guardianship order, a child 
arrangements order or a residence order 

£2,300 

Service children 
Pupil 

premium per 
pupil 

Pupils in year groups reception to year 11 recorded 
as Ever 6 service child or in receipt of child pension 
from the Ministry of Defence 

£300 

 
7.3 The grant may be spent in the following ways: 

 for the purposes of the school, that is for the educational benefit of 
pupils registered at that school  

 for the benefit of pupils registered at other maintained schools or 
academies  

 on community facilities eg services whose provision furthers any 
charitable purpose for the benefit of pupils at the school or their 
families, or people who live or work in the locality in which the school is 
situated 
 

7.4 The grant does not have to be completely spent by schools in the financial 
year, some or all of it may be carried forward to future financial years. 
 

7.5 PPG allocations will be confirmed in June 2018 once pupil number data 
from the January 2018 census has been validated and agreed. PPG will be 
paid to LAs in quarterly instalments by: 

 30 June 2018  

 29 September 2018  

 29 December 2018  

 30 March 2019 
Schools cash flow will be paid quarterly once the PPG is received. 
 

8. Universal Infant Free School Meals (UIFSM) 
 

Page 16



 

Schools Forum 22nd February 2018 – 2018-19 Dedicated Schools Budget 
 

11 

 

8.1  The grant for universal infant free school meals (UIFSM) continues at 
a meal rate of £2.30 for the 2018 to 2019 academic year. Each meal 
taken by an eligible pupil attracts £2.30. An allocation assumes that pupils 
will take 190 school meals over an academic year, providing £437 per 
eligible pupil. The EFA will confirm the arrangements later in the year. 

 
8.2 For the academic year 2017 to 2018, EFA will base a provisional allocation 

to schools on the final allocation for academic year 2016 to 2017. EFA will 
count dual registered pupils at the setting at which they took the meal on 
the census day, even if it is their subsidiary setting. EFA will calculate a 
final allocation for academic year 2017 to 2018 in June 2018 using the 
number of pupils recorded as taking a meal in year 1 and year 2 in the 
October 2017 and January 2018 school censuses. EFA will then subtract 
those pupils known to be eligible for FSM in the same censuses who are 
taking a meal. This figure is then divided by 2 to give the average number 
of eligible UIFSM pupils in years 1 and 2 this figure is then divided by 2. 
The number of reception pupils used will be the greater of either : 

 number of pupils recorded as taking a meal in the October 2017 and 
January 2018 school censuses, minus those pupils taking a meal 
known to be eligible for FSM in the same censuses, divided by 2. 
This gives the average number of eligible UIFSM pupils in reception 
for academic year 2017 to 2018; or 

 the number of pupils recorded as taking a meal in January 2018 
school censuses, minus those pupils taking a meal known to be 
eligible for FSM in the same census 

 
EFA will count dual registered pupils where they took their meal on the 
census days, even if it is their subsidiary setting. 
 

8.3 Where a school does not record pupils in year groups, EFA will use those 
aged 4, 5 or 6 on the relevant school censuses to calculate the allocations. 
EFA will include pupils on the alternative provision census placed in 
independent schools in the provisional and final allocations to local 
authorities. 

 
Terms on which UIFSM grant is allocated to schools 
 

8.4 The grant supports schools in delivering the legal requirement to offer free 
school meals, meeting the school food standards, to all their reception, 
year 1 and year 2 pupils. Subject to meeting this legal duty, schools may 
spend the grant for the purposes of the school; that is to say for the 
educational benefit of pupils registered at that school, or for the benefit of 
pupils registered at other schools. They may also spend it on community 
facilities, for example services whose provision furthers any charitable 
purpose for the benefit of pupils at the school or their families, or people 
who live or work in the school‟s locality. 
 

Page 17



 

Schools Forum 22nd February 2018 – 2018-19 Dedicated Schools Budget 
 

12 

 

8.5  Schools do not have to spend the entire grant in the financial year 
beginning 1 April 2018; they may carry forward some or all the grant. 
 

8.6 The grant will be paid to schools and LAs as follows: 
 

Month Proportion of grant 

July 2017 

7/12ths of each school‟s provisional main allocation. 
Schools that were academies on 1 April 2017 will 
receive their UIFSM grant direct from EFA in July 
2016. 

July 2018 

The final main allocation for each maintained school 
as at 1 April 2018 minus the amount of the main 
allocation paid in July 2017. Any school that converts 
to academy status after 1 April 2017, and by 1 April 
2018, will receive the rest of its main allocation direct 
from EFA in July 2018. 
 

 
8.7 The Secretary of State and the Comptroller and Auditor General may 

inspect the books, records and other documents that relate the recipient‟s 
accounts. Under Section 6 of the National Audit Act 1983, the Comptroller 
and Auditor General may examine whether the authority or school spent 
the premium in an efficient and cost-effective way. The recipient should 
provide any information the Secretary of State requires in order determine 
whether the authority or school has complied with the conditions in this 
document. The Secretary of State may require the repayment of the whole 
or any part of the grant if the authority or school fails to follow the 
conditions in this document. 

 
9. Year 7 Catch-up Premium  

 
9.1 The year 7 catch-up premium continues in 2018 to 2019. The EFA will 

confirm the arrangements in early 2018. 
 

9.2 The literacy and numeracy catch-up premium gives schools additional 
funding to support year 7 pupils who did not achieve the expected standard 
in reading or maths at the end of key stage 2 (KS2). 
 
All state-funded schools with year 7 pupils receive this funding, including: 
 

 schools maintained by the local authority  

 academies  

 free schools  

 special schools (schools for children with special educational needs 
or disabilities), including:  

 special schools maintained by the local authority  

 special academies  

 special free schools  

Page 18

https://www.gov.uk/guidance/scaled-scores-at-key-stage-2
https://www.gov.uk/types-of-school/academies
https://www.gov.uk/types-of-school/free-schools
https://www.gov.uk/types-of-school/academies
https://www.gov.uk/types-of-school/free-schools


 

Schools Forum 22nd February 2018 – 2018-19 Dedicated Schools Budget 
 

13 

 

 alternative provision settings (places that provide education for 
children who can‟t go to a mainstream school), including:  

 pupil referral units (PRUs)  

 AP academies  

 AP free schools  
 
How schools should use the year 7 literacy and numeracy catch-up 
premium 

9.3 Schools should identify pupils who need extra support from the year 7 
catch-up premium, so it can decide the best way to use the funding. 
Schools should only select programmes and approaches that are effective. 
For example, schools could use the funding to pay for: 

 individual tuition  

 intensive small-group tuition  

 external services and materials  

 summer schools that help students catch up over a short period of 
time 

 
9.4 Schools can find examples of effective approaches and programmes in our 

summary of research into literacy and numeracy catch-up strategies. 
 
Accountability 

9.5 Schools must publish details of how it spends the year 7 catch-up premium 
funding on their website. Guidance on what specific information you need 
to publish on their website is available. 
 

9.6 Ofsted inspectors will also consider how your school is using the premium. 
 

10. Primary PE and Sport Premium 
 

10.1 The primary PE and sport premium continues in 2018 to 2019. The EFA 
will confirm the arrangements later in the year. 
 

10.2 The premium for the 2017 to 2018 academic year is paid in 2 instalments 
from the Secretary of State to the authority as follows: 

 

Financial year 2017 to 2018 academic year Payment date 

2017 to 2018 September 2017 to March 2018 29 October 2018 

2018 to 2019 April to August 2018 27 April 2018 

 
10.3 The premium must be used to fund additional and sustainable 

improvements to the provision of PE and sport, for the benefit of primary-
aged pupils, in the 2016 to 2017 academic year, to encourage the 
development of healthy, active lifestyles. Information on how much PE and 
sport premium funding primary schools receive and advice on how to 
spend it has been published. 
 

Page 19

https://www.gov.uk/types-of-school/academies
https://www.gov.uk/types-of-school/free-schools
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/literacy-and-numeracy-catch-up-strategies
https://www.gov.uk/what-maintained-schools-must-publish-online#year-7-literacy-and-numeracy-catch-up-premium
https://www.gov.uk/what-maintained-schools-must-publish-online#year-7-literacy-and-numeracy-catch-up-premium
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/pe-and-sport-premium-for-primary-schools
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/pe-and-sport-premium-for-primary-schools
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/pe-and-sport-premium-for-primary-schools


 

Schools Forum 22nd February 2018 – 2018-19 Dedicated Schools Budget 
 

14 

 

10.4 Allocations for the academic year 2017 to 2018 are calculated using the 
number of pupils in years 1 to 6, as recorded in the January 2018 census, 
as follows: 

 schools with 17 or more pupils receive £16,000 plus £10 per pupil  

 schools with 16 or fewer pupils receive £1,000 per pupil 
Where year group does not record schools‟ pupils, aged 5 to 10 deemed 
eligible. 
 
Terms on which the premium is allocated to schools 

10.5 Local authorities must pass the premium to maintained schools within one 
month of receipt, and must require that maintained schools comply with the 
conditions set out below. 
 

10.6 The premium must be spent by schools on making additional and 
sustainable improvements to the provision of PE and sport for the benefit 
of all pupils to encourage the development of healthy, active lifestyles.  

 
10.7 The Secretary of State does not consider the following expenditure as 

falling within the scope of additional or sustainable improvement: 

 employing coaches or specialist teachers to cover planning preparation 
and assessment (PPA) arrangements - these should come out of 
schools‟ core staffing budgets  

 teaching the minimum requirements of the national curriculum PE 
programmes of study - including those specified for swimming 
 
 

10.8 Maintained schools, including those that convert to academies, must publish 
 information about their use of the premium on their website by 4 April 2018. 
 Schools should publish the amount of premium received; a full breakdown 
 of how it has been spent (or will be spent); what impact the school has seen 
 on pupils‟ PE, sport participation and attainment and how the  
 improvements will be sustainable in the future. Schools should also consider 
 how their use of the premium is giving pupils the opportunity to develop a 
 healthy, active lifestyle. 
 
11. Summary of budget information to be released for schools 
 
11.1. This report confirms decisions of Cabinet about schools budgets for 

2017/18.  Some elements of budgets are fixed and others are provided on 
a provisional basis and are adjusted during the year, once actual data 
becomes available.  Based on the information in this report, schools should 
set their 2018-19 draft and final budget plans using the following 
information. 

 
a. Agreed allocated budget share from: 

 Schools Block APT Proforma (based on October 2017 census)  

 High Needs Block Place Funding (approved by EFA in January 
2018) 

Page 20

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/school-teachers-pay-and-conditions-2015
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/school-teachers-pay-and-conditions-2015


 

Schools Forum 22nd February 2018 – 2018-19 Dedicated Schools Budget 
 

15 

 

 
b. Indicative budget share from: 

 Early Years Block for 3 & 4 Year Funding (based on May 2017, 
October 2017 and January 2018 census) 

 Early Years Block Maintained Nursery School Funding (notified 
by EFA) 

 High Needs Block Top up Funding from Haringey (base on 
October 2017 data)  

 High Needs Block Top up Funding from other local authorities 
 
c. Pupil Premium Grant (Financial Year based on eligible pupils on the 

January 2018 census) 
d. Universal Infant Free School Meals Grant (Academic Year based on 

eligible pupils on October 2017 and January 2018 census for 
Academic Year 2017-18 and Academic Year based on eligible 
pupils on October 2017 and January 2019 census for Academic 
Year 2018-19) 

e. 2018-19 Year 7 Catch-up Premium Grant (Financial Year based on 
October 2017 census) 

f. Primary PE and Sport Premium (Academic Year 2017-18 based on 
January 2017 census and Academic Year 2018-19 based on 
January 2018 census) 

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



DSG Reserves

2017-18 Opening Balance 

Revenue budget forecast at period 10

Training for all maintained schools using unspent 2016-17 Contingency for 

Schools in Financial Difficulty budget 

Forecast Underspend on 2017-18 Growth Fund

Early Years Block Childcare subsidy paid

Early Years Block 2 year old pressure paid

ESFA 2016-17 Early Years Funding Reduction  on 3 & 4 year olds

2017-18 Early Years Block 3 & 4 year old potential underspend

Projected 2017-18 Balance c/f 

Projected 2018-19 Opening Balance

Early Years Block 2018-19 EYB 2 year old pressure Commitments

.25% of 18/19 schools block to Highneeds block

ANALYSIS OF DSG RESERVE FOR 22 FEBRUARY 2018 SCHOOLS FORUM

Page 23



Schools Block Early Years Block High Needs Block

£ £ £

(815,340) (1,984,918) 0

(9,898) 49,115 848,421

80,000

(353,572)

700,000

400,000

650,000

(650,000)

(1,098,810) (835,803) 848,421

(1,098,810) (835,803) 848,421

400,000

488,248 (488,248)

ANALYSIS OF DSG RESERVE FOR 22 FEBRUARY 2018 SCHOOLS FORUM

Page 24



APPENDIX 1

DSG Reserve

£

(2,800,258)

887,638

80,000

(353,572)

700,000

400,000

650,000

(650,000)

(1,086,192)

(1,086,192)

400,000

0

ANALYSIS OF DSG RESERVE FOR 22 FEBRUARY 2018 SCHOOLS FORUM

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 
www.haringey.gov.uk 

  
 

 
 
 
 
The Children’s Service 
 
Report to Haringey Schools Forum – 22 February 2018  
 

 
Report Title: The 2018/19 internal audit programme for schools 
 

 
Author: Head of Audit and Risk Management 
 

 
Purpose: 
To advise the Schools Forum of the programme of internal audit work to be 
undertaken in 2018/19. 
 

 
Recommendations 

1. That the Schools Forum note the planned programme of internal audit 
work for 2017/18 (Appendix A). 
 

 
1. Background 
1.1 The Council‟s Corporate Finance service issued the Schools Finance Manual to all 

schools in 2007. The Manual sets out the financial regulations and procedures that 
schools should follow and covers all key financial and non-financial processes. Whilst 
some of the content has been superseded, the principles of the financial and non-
financial processes and procedures remain valid, including e.g. budgetary control, 
income and expenditure systems, recruitment and asset management. 
 

1.2 In addition, Corporate Finance provides regular guidance and information to all schools 
in respect of the key financial and non-financial processes at schools. 
 

1.3 Internal Audit undertakes a programme of school audit reviews to ensure that schools 
are complying with the requirements of the Schools Finance Manual and the risks 
associated with the key financial and non-financial processes are appropriately 
managed. 

 
1.4 Internal audit are not required to audit the School Financial Value Standard (SFVS), 

where schools undertake a self-assessment of, or provide an opinion of schools‟ 
compliance with this standard. However, the programme of routine audit work should 
assist schools in providing appropriate assurance to Governing Bodies for the SFVS. 

 

Report Status 
 
For information/note    
For consultation & views  
For decision     

Agenda Item  

            7 

Page 27 Agenda Item 7



2 

 

1.5 Internal Audit previously circulated the audit test programme to all schools, via the 
Schools Bulletin and following each annual pre-audit workshop session. This should 
not be seen as an exhaustive programme as Internal Audit may undertake additional 
work or testing if control weaknesses, or compliance issues, are identified during the 
audit visit. However, ensuring that key processes and controls are in place, should 
assist schools to prepare for an audit visit. 

 
2. Internal Audit schools audit programme 2018/19 
2.1 Internal Audit will continue with a programme of audit work for schools in 2018/19 and 

the planned programme of audit visits is attached at Appendix A.  
 

2.2 The programme is based on an analysis of the risks, together with a cyclical element to 
ensure that all schools are visited within an agreed period (maximum every four years). 
Included in the list for 2018/19 are some schools which received a „limited‟, or „nil‟, 
assurance rating and had outstanding recommendations at the time of the follow up 
audit, so their audit cycle will be less than four years.  

 
2.3 Internal Audit will liaise with the Head Teachers to arrange a mutually convenient time 

for the audit visit to take place. As is current practice, formal confirmation of the date, 
together with the areas to be reviewed, audit approach, and documents required for the 
audit will be provided to the school in advance via email.  
 

2.4 The confirmation will usually be made via email approximately 8 weeks prior to the 
audit visit. One week prior to the agreed date, Internal Audit will re-confirm the audit 
visit with the school. 
 

3. Assurance outcomes for previous years’ audit programme 
3.1 This report summarises the overall outcomes and assurance levels provided to 

individual schools from 2014/15 to 2017/18.  Table 1 below summarises the outcomes 
for the previous four financial years of all internal audits completed.  

Table 1 

 Number of 
audits 

completed/ 
planned 

Substantial 
Assurance 

Rating 

Limited 
Assurance 

Rating 

Nil 
Assurance 

Rating 

2014/15     

  Primary Schools 
(incl. nursery/special) 

12 4 8 0 

Secondary Schools 1 1 0 0 

Sub-total 13 5 8 0 

2015/16     

  Primary Schools 
(incl. nursery/special) 

12   8 4 0 

Secondary Schools 1 1 0 0 

Sub-total 13 9 4 0 

  2016/17         

  Primary Schools 
(incl. nursery/special) 

21 8 10 3 

  Secondary Schools 3 2 1 0 

  Sub-total 24 10 11 3 

Page 28



3 

 

  2017/18*     

  Primary Schools 
(incl. nursery/special) 

18 8 8 2 

  Secondary Schools 1 1 0 0 

  Sub-total 19 9 8 2 

  Total 69 33 31 5 

* audit programme of work still in progress 
 
3.2 The 2017/18 audit programme has yet to be completed and a further update on the 

final position will be provided to the Schools Forum later in the year. However, the 
Schools Forum will note the number and proportion of schools receiving a „limited‟ or 
“no” level of assurance at this stage of the year remains higher than desired compared 
to earlier years. In 2016, the Schools Forum were advised that the 2016/17 included a 
higher proportion of schools which were on a shorter audit cycle as a result of 
previous „limited‟ or „nil‟ assurance ratings and/or failing to implement 
recommendations by the date of the formal audit follow up visit.  The 2017/18 
programme included those schools receiving no assurance. 

 
4. Reporting and escalation processes (agreed 2015/16) 
4.1 The Children‟s Service was concerned with the outcomes of the follow up programme 

following the outcome report to the Schools Forum meeting in July 2015 which 
advised that 28 out of 58 High Priority (Priority 1) recommendations remained 
outstanding at the time of the follow up visit. The Council‟s Corporate Committee also 
requested action be taken to address the situation.  

4.2 As a result, the then Interim Assistant Director – Schools and Learning presented a 
report to the Corporate Committee in November 2015. The report confirmed that the 
Children‟s Service and Internal Audit would continue to support schools, but set out 
the steps that would be taken: firstly, to ensure that audit reports were provided as a 
matter of routine to each Chair of Governors; and secondly the escalation process that 
would be followed if schools did not provide an appropriate response to the audit 
recommendations. The escalation process was circulated to all schools following 
approval at Corporate Committee. 

 
4.3 Since its implementation, the escalation process has not been used as agreement has 

been reached between schools and internal audit; however, the option to use the 
escalation process in the future will be retained. The Council‟s Corporate Committee 
also requested action be taken to address the situation. We have also seen a 
reduction in the level of outstanding recommendation during follow up visits. 

 
5. Training for School staff and Governors 
5.1 In addition to circulating the school audit test programme, a workshop session is 

provided for school staff (head teachers, school business managers, finance staff etc) 
to further assist schools in identifying key risk areas and control processes. All schools 
with audits planned during the year are invited to the workshop session.  

 
5.2 An informal workshop session will be booked in March or April 2018 once the 2017/18 

audit plan has been formally agreed and an invitation will be sent to all schools listed 
at Appendix A, together with any newly appointed Head, Deputy Head teachers and 
School Business Managers. If any other schools, apart from those listed at Appendix 
A wish to participate in the pre-audit workshop session, please contact Jerry Barton, 

Page 29



4 

 

the Audit Manager, via email at jerry.barton@mazars.co.uk. The new Head of Audit, 
who is due to start shortly, plans to be in attendance to deal with your queries.  

 
6. Recommendations 
6.1 That the Schools Forum note the planned programme of audit work for 2018/19 

(Appendix A) and the initial feedback on outcomes following audit work completed in 
2017/18. 

Page 30

mailto:jerry.barton@mazars.co.uk


5 

 

Appendix A 
 

 
 

Internal Audit – Schools Audit Programme 2017/18 

 

 
  

  
Last Audit Date 

   

 
Primary Schools 

 1 The Willow February 2016 

2 Devonshire Hill June 2015 

3 Chestnuts July 2017 

4 Earlham October 2016 

5 Earlsmead March 2016 

6 Highgate May 2016 

7 Risley Avenue March 2015 

8 St Francis de Sale September 2014 

9 St Ignatius October 2016 

10 St James CE March 2014 

11 Stamford Hill January 2018 

 
  

 
Junior Schools  

12 South Harringay September 2014 

   

 
Infant Schools 

 13 South Harringay May 2015 

   

 Secondary Schools  

14 Parkview September 2014 

   

 Nursery Schools  

15 Rowland Hill September 2014 

Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 of 4 

 

  

 

 
 

 
 
     
 
 
 
 
 
Report to Haringey Schools Forum – 22nd February 2018 
 

 
Report Title: Growth Fund 2017-18 Update 
 

 
Authors:   
 
Kamaljit Kaur - Business Partner – Schools 
Contact: 020 84895232  Email: Kamaljit.kaur@haringey.gov.uk 
 

 
Purpose:  
 
To inform members of the Growth Fund liabilities for 2017-18. 
 

 
Recommendations: 
 

1. For Members information, regarding total cost of 2017/18 Growth 
Fund set out in Table 1. 

 

 

Agenda Item 8 

 

Report Status 
 
For information/note    
For consultation & views  

For decision    

  

Page 33 Agenda Item 8



Page 2 of 4 

 

1. Introduction. 
 

1.1. The funding changes introduced in April 2013 allow a local authority, 
with the approval of its Schools Forum, to top-slice a contingency for in 
year increases in pupil numbers. The Fund applies equally to maintained 
schools and recoupment academies and is design to cover required in-
year growth in forms of entry and not general variations in numbers 
experienced during the year. 

   
1.2. Schools Forum agreed to allocate £1.1m to a Growth Fund for the 2017-

18 financial year 
 
1.3. Officers are required to report all payments made against the Growth 

Fund to Schools Forum at least once a year.  Any unspent Growth Fund 
will be carry forward and added to the formula allocations for the 
following financial year. 

 
2. Criteria. 

 
The criteria agreed by Forum for allocations from the Fund are: 

 support growth in pre-16 pupil numbers to meet basic need 

 Planned new form of entry approved by the Local Authority: 
o Classroom funding based on 7/12 months * appropriate 

basic per pupil entitlement * expected number in class; 
plus 

o A set-up allocation of £500 for each pupil in a standard 
class size for the relevant setting. 

 In-year bulge class: 
o Start up and classroom costs as above; 

 support additional classes needed to meet the infant class size 

regulation 

 Ghost funding guarantee KS1: 
o Minimum basic per-pupil funding for 24 pupils in a 

bulge class established in a previous year: and 

 KS1 classes forced to exceed 30 pupils as a result of appeals 
(further details of this criteria are set out in the Annex): 

o A lump sum equivalent to the funding of a main-scale 
1-teacher £32.8k pro-rata to the part of the year. 

 
3. Proposed Allocations. 
 
3.1. Table 1 sets out the resources now available in the Growth Fund and the 

proposed calls against it. 
 

Page 34



Page 3 of 4 

 

 
 
Table 1. Summary of Resources and Allocations to Date. 
 

School 
2015-16 

Adjustments 
2016-17 

Adjustments 
2017-18 

Payments 
Total Total 

Growth Fund Budget         -£1,100,000 

Growth Fund 
Payments: 

          

Alexandra Primary     £78,750 £78,750   

Bounds Green Infant     £78,750 £78,750   

Heartlands High £119,797 £1,370 £159,924 £281,091   

Rhodes Avenue 
Primary 

    £78,750 £78,750   

Welbourne Primary     £78,750 £78,750   

Brook House Primary   £8,200   £8,200   

Coldfall Primary   £8,200 £13,667 £21,867   

North Harringay 
Primary 

  £0 £13,667 £13,667   

Rhodes Avenue 
Primary 

  £8,200 £32,801 £41,001   

St Francis de Sales 
Catholic Infant 

  £8,200   £8,200   

St Mary's CE Primary   £19,134   £19,134   

St Mary's RC Infant   £19,134   £19,134   

St Michael's Primary - 
N6 

  £19,134   £19,134   

Total Growth Fund 
Paid 

£119,796.75 £91,571.81 £535,058.98   £746,427.54 

Growth Fund 
Remaining 

        
-

£353,572.46 

 
4. Recommendations. 

 
1. For Members information, regarding total cost of 2017/18 Growth Fund 

set out in Table 1 
 
 
 

 
Annex. 

Page 35



Page 4 of 4 

 

 
Circumstances in which KS1 oversize class funding will be provided. 
 

The legal position is:  
 

Infant class size – Infant classes (those where the majority of children will 
reach the age of 5, 6 or 7 during the school year) must not contain more 
than 30 pupils with a single school teacher. Additional children may be 
admitted under limited exceptional circumstances. These children will 
remain an ‘excepted pupil’ for the time they are in an infant class or until the 
class numbers fall back to the current infant class size limit. The excepted 
children are:  
 
a) children admitted outside the normal admissions round with statements 
of special educational needs specifying a school;  

b) looked after children and previously looked after children admitted 
outside the normal admissions round;  

c) children admitted, after initial allocation of places, because of a 
procedural error made by the admission authority or local authority in the 
original application process;  

d) children admitted after an independent appeals panel upholds an appeal;  

e) children who move into the area outside the normal admissions round for 
whom there is no other available school within reasonable distance;  

f) children of UK service personnel admitted outside the normal admissions 
round;  
 

In these circumstances, therefore, it is not necessary to take on an 
additional teacher; however, it has been the practice in Haringey, and 
other councils, to continue to provide funding for KS1 classes forced to 
exceed 30 pupils. The DfE in its allowable criteria recognises this 
practice and we recommend that it continue as an incentive to schools to 
willingly accommodate these pupils at the start of their school career. 
Our recommendations are: 
 

 That class size funding continues in the circumstances shown 
above.  

 That KS1 class size funding recognises the local arrangement that 
requires a school to take a twin even when this puts the school over 
number. 

 That only one enhancement is made per school even if more than 
one KS1 class is over-size.  

 
 

Page 36



Page 1 of 55 

 

 
  

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Report to Haringey Schools Forum – Thursday 22nd February 2018 
 

 
Report Title: 2018-19 Scheme for Financing School 
 

 
Authors:   
 
Paul Durrant – Head of Finance, Children, Schools and Adults 
Contact:  020 8489 3248 Email:  Paul.durrant@haringey.gov.uk  
 
Kamaljit Kaur – Finance Business Partner - Schools and Learning 
Contact: 0208 489 1263  Email: Kamaljit.kaur@haringey.gov.uk 
 

 
Purpose:  
 
To update Schools Forum of the Scheme for Financing Schools 
 

 
Recommendation: 
 
Schools Forum is recommended: 

1. To note that Schools Forum updated Scheme for Financing Schools 
effective from April 2018 

2. Given the size of the document, it was decided prudent to provide 
members with an electronic copy as opposed to a hard copy. 
 

 

  

Agenda Item 9 

For informatio/note      
For consultation & views   
For Decision    
 

 

  

Page 37 Agenda Item 9

mailto:Paul.durrant@haringey.gov.uk
mailto:Kamaljit.kaur@haringey.gov.uk


Page 2 of 55 

 

Funding Updates 

   Content       Page No 

The Funding Framework     7-8 

Financial Requirements; Audit & Reporting             9-10,12-14 

Budget Share       16 

Banking Arrangements     17-18 

Control on Balances      19 

Licensed Deficits      21 

Income       22-23 

Budget Share       24-26 

Value Added Tax      27 

Service Level Agreements     29 

Private Finance Initiative     30 

Miscellaneous       32-34 

Repairs and Maintenance     35 

Community Facilities Power     36-41 

Appendix A       42 

Appendix B       44-45  

Appendix C       46 

Appendix D       47-55 

 

 

Page 38



Page 3 of 55 

 

 
 

Scheme 
For 

Financing 
Schools 

 

Regulations and guidance governing the 
financial relationship between Haringey 
and its maintained schoolsEffective April 2018 

The Scheme for Financing Schools 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 39



Page 4 of 55 

 

List of Contents 
 

1. Introduction 
 
2. Financial Requirements 
 
3. Instalments of Budget Share; Banking Arrangements 
 
4. Treatment of Surpluses and Deficit Balances arising in relation to budget shares 
 
5. Income 
 
6. The Charging of School Budget Shares 
 
7. Taxation 
 
8. The Provision of Services and Facilities by  
 
9. Private Finance Initiative 
 
10. Insurance 
 
11. Miscellaneous 
 
12. Responsibility for Repairs and Maintenance 
 
13. Community Facilities Power 
 
Appendix A  Sections 27 and 28 of the Education Act 2002 
 
Appendix B  List of Schools to which this Scheme applies 
 
Appendix C  Responsibility for redundancy and early retirement costs 
 
Appendix D  Responsibility for Repairs and Maintenance 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 40



Page 5 of 55 

 

SECTION 1: INTRODUCTION  
 
 1.1 The Funding Framework  
 
The funding framework, which replaces Local Management of Schools, is based on the 
legislative provisions in sections 45-53 of the School Standards and Framework Act, (SSAF) 
1998.  

Under this legislation, local authorities determine for themselves the size of their Schools Budget 
and non-schools education budget -although at a minimum an authority must appropriate its 
entire Dedicated Schools Grant to their Schools Budget. The categories of expenditure which fall 
within the two budgets are prescribed under regulations made by the Secretary of State, but 
included within the two, taken together, is all expenditure, direct and indirect, on an authority's 
maintained schools except for capital and certain miscellaneous items. Authorities may deduct 
funds from their schools budget for purposes specified in regulations made by the Secretary of 
State under s.45A of the Act (the centrally retained expenditure). The amounts to be deducted for 
these purposes are decided by the authority concerned, subject to any limits or conditions 
(including gaining the approval of their School Forum or the Secretary of State in certain 
instances) as prescribed by the Secretary of State. The balance of the schools budget left after 
deduction of centrally retained funds is termed the Individual Schools Budget (ISB). Expenditure 
items in the non-schools education budget retained centrally (although earmarked allocations 
may be made to schools).  
 
Authorities must distribute the ISB amongst their maintained schools using a formula; which 
accords with regulations made by the Secretary of State, and enables the calculation of a budget 
share for each maintained school. This budget share delegated to the governing body of the 
school concerned, unless the school is a new school and has not yet received a delegated 
budget, or the right to a delegated budget  been suspended in accordance with s.51 of the Act. 
The financial controls within which delegation works are set out in a scheme made by the 
authority in accordance with s.48 of the Act and regulations made under that section. All 
proposals to revise the scheme; must be approved by the Schools Forum, though the authority 
may apply to the Secretary of State for approval in the event of the forum rejecting a proposal or 
approving it subject to modifications that are not acceptable to the authority. 

Subject to provision made by or under the scheme, governing bodies of schools may spend such 
amounts of their budget shares as they think fit for any purposes of their school and for any 
additional purposes prescribed by the Secretary of State in regulations made under s.50 of the 
Act. (Section 50 has been amended to provide that amounts spent by a governing body on 
providing community facilities or services under section 27 of the Education Act 2002 are treated 
as if they were amounts spent for the purposes of the school (s50(3A) of the Act.)  

An authority may suspend a school's right to a delegated budget if the provisions of the 
authority’s financing scheme (or rules applied by the scheme) have been substantially or 
persistently breached, or if the budget share has not been managed satisfactorily. A school's 
right to a delegated budget share may be suspended for other reasons (schedule 17 to the Act).  

Each authority is obliged to publish each year a statement setting out details of its planned 
Schools Budget and other expenditure on children’s services, showing the amounts to be 
centrally retained, the budget share for each school. After each financial year the authority must 
publish a statement showing, out-turn expenditure at both central level and for each school, and 
the balances held in respect of each school.  

The detailed publication requirements for financial statements are set out in directions issued by 
the Secretary of State, but each school must receive a copy of each year's budget and out-turn 
statements as far as they relate to that school or central expenditure.  
 

Page 41



Page 6 of 55 

 

Regulations also require a local authority to publish their schemes and any revisions to it on a 
website accessible to the general public, by the date that any revisions come into force, together 
with a statement that the revised scheme comes into force on that date.  
 

1.2 The role of the Scheme  
 
The purpose of the scheme is to set out the financial relationship between the Local Authority 
(the London Borough of Haringey) and its maintained schools that it funds. The scheme sets out 
the requirements for sound financial management and associated issues, which are binding on 
both the authority and on schools. 

1.2.1 Application of the scheme to the Authority and maintained schools  

This scheme applies to all community, nursery, voluntary, foundation (including trust), community 
special, foundation special schools and PRUs maintained by (as listed in Appendix B). It will not 
apply to any academies within the borough. 

1.3 Publication of the scheme  

A copy of the scheme will be published on the Council website. 

1.4 Revision of the scheme 

Any proposed revisions to the scheme will be the subject of consultation with the governing body 
and the head teacher of every school maintained by the authority before they are submitted to 
the schools forum for their approval.  

All proposed revisions must be submitted to the schools forum by approval by members of the 
forum representing maintained schools. Where the schools forum does not approve them or 
approves them subject to modifications, which are not acceptable to the local authority, the local 
authority may apply to the Secretary of State for approval. 
 
1.5 Delegation of powers to the head teacher 
 
Each governing body have full responsibility for the management of the school's budget and for 
the appointment and dismissal of all staff taking into account the professional advice of the 
Director of Children's Services and their head teacher. Governing bodies are required to: 

 Spend their budgets in a manner that is consistent with the implementation of the National 
Curriculum; with the statutory requirements relating to the curriculum as a whole, 
(including religious education and worship), to secure provision for children with additional 
educational needs and use their best endeavours to secure the provision set out in the 
statement of special educational need of any pupil registered at the school insofar as that 
provision is not made from central resources retained by the LA for that purpose; 

 operate an effective and efficient education service within the strategic framework set by 
the LA for the benefit of their pupils; 

 operate within their budget share; 

 meet the actual cost of all expenditure from their delegated budget; any devolved 
funding (e.g. Standards Funds grants) and any income accruing to the governors.  

 
Each governing body should consider the extent to which it wishes to delegate financial powers, 
and should record its decision (and any revisions) in the minutes of the governing body. 
Governing Bodies may make delegations in writing direct to the head teacher and other members 
of staff or may choose to delegate matters only to the Head teacher, who in turn may make 
further delegations as appropriate.  
The first formal budget plan of each financial year must be approved by the governing body. 

Page 42



Page 7 of 55 

 

The LA has no wish to impose uniformity on schools but has set out a model scheme and code of 
practice for delegation to head teachers, which sets out reasonable parameters that governing 
bodies are asked to consider. It is a suggestion only and governing bodies are free to determine 
arrangements appropriate to their circumstances.  

 
The level of delegation decided upon by the governors of the school and any subsequent 
revisions should agree by the full governing body and duly detailed in the minutes of the 
governing body. Such decisions will be subject to any requirements of regulations made under 
Section 38 and Schedule 11 of the School Standards and Framework Act.  

The governors should delegate at least the day-to-day administration and management of the 
school finances to the head teacher. The arrangements must also make clear the respective 
responsibilities of the governors and the head teacher for the Annual Budget Plan and delegated 
budget 

1.6 Maintenance of Schools  

The LA is responsible for maintaining the schools covered by the scheme, and this includes the 
defraying of all the expenses of maintaining them (except in the case of a voluntary aided school 
where some of the expenses are, by statute, the responsibility of the governing body). Part of the 
way an authority maintains schools is through the funding system put in place under sections 45 
to 53 of the Schools Standards and Framework Act 1998.  
 

Page 43



Page 8 of 55  

SECTION 2: FINANCIAL REQUIREMENTS; AUDIT & REPORTING 
 
2.1.1 Application of financial controls to schools  
In managing their delegated budgets, schools must abide by the Authority's requirements on 
financial controls and monitoring. As far as possible, schools will be given the freedom to exercise 
choice that is compatible with exercising management autonomy over their budgets.  will seek 
only to impose regulations that are consistent with the need for accountability and control over the 
expenditure of public funds.  
 
In managing their delegated budgets, schools are required to abide by the LA's requirements on 
financial controls and monitoring.  
 
2.1.2 Provision of financial information and reports  
 
School governors are responsible for:  

 ensuring that there are effective controls in place for authorising, monitoring and controlling 
expenditure and obtaining value for money,  

 maintaining accurate records of all income and expenditure transactions using an 
accounting package approved by the LA and  

 providing the LA with copies of expected and actual income and expenditure, accounts, 
records, information and other relevant documentation in such form and at such times as 
required, (this includes provision of information to any Auditors and to H.M. Revenue & 
Customs).  

 Meeting LA deadlines for the provision of financial information to the LA. 
 
Under Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972, the LA's Chief Finance Officer is 
responsible for the probity and regularity of the LA's financial activities. The LA's Chief Finance 
Officer (or other officer given authority to act on his or her behalf) will have the right to intervene in 
the financial affairs of a school where there are concerns about compliance with financial 
regulations or other guidance set out in this document or in those to which it refers. In such an 
event, the LA may withdraw delegation and any resultant costs arising for the LA will normally be 
charged to the school's budget.  
 
 LA has an overall responsibility to monitor school finances. Schools are required to provide the 
authority with details of expected and actual expenditure and income, in a form (generally in line 
with Consistent Financial Reporting) and at times determined by the authority. This will not be 
more often than quarterly (except for information connected with tax or banking reconciliation) but 
may be more frequent if the LA has given the school notice in writing that it is concerned about its 
financial management or the school is in its first year of operation.  
 
2.1.3 Payment of salaries; payment of bills  
 
Payment of bills 
 
All schools are in receipt of their own bank accounts and the majority of payments will be 
processed using these accounts. The administration relating to this area should be in accordance 
with Financial Regulations, Contract Procedure Rules and Schools Financial Procedures Manual. 
These provisions state that a school may use its disbursement bank account to pay for all goods 
and service included in the delegated budget.  
 
A school must not use its disbursement bank account to pay for any excepted items such as non-
LA activities supported by School Funds or PTA . Advice should be sought from the Schools 
Finance team. 
 
 
 

Page 44



Page 9 of 55  

 
Payment of salaries 
 
The governing body shall be responsible for the payroll routines for employees working in their 
school. This responsibility will include calculating, where applicable, all remuneration, pensions 
and gratuities, deductions for income tax, superannuation, National Insurance, Apprenticeship 
Levies, the advance and recovery of any loans agreed by the school, etc. Governors will normally 
discharge these responsibilities with the assistance of their payroll provider.  
 
A  At present the majority of schools have opted to buy into the LA payroll service, their 

payroll costs are not directly charged to the school bank accounts but are deducted from 
the monthly cash flow paid to the schools. The administration relating to this area should 
be in accordance with Financial Regulations issued by the LA to schools. 

 
B  Should the governing body exercise this responsibility through some other provider, then it 

is in the governing body's interest that their contract is equally clear about these matters. If 
governors do not do so, they expose themselves to great risk and are therefore; advised to 
seek advice from the Director of Children's Services about their view as to the provider's 
ability to carry out the functions set out above. 

  
C  The Schools Financial Procedures Manual sets out the information about such matters as 

tax and pensions that the LA will require the governors to provide in order for it to carry out 
its remaining legal obligations in respect of tax and pensions, etc. This continuing service 
may be the subject of a SLA for which a charge will be made.  

 
Teachers Pensions 

 In order to ensure that the performance of the duty on the LA to supply Teachers Pensions 
with information under the Teachers' Pensions Regulations 1997, the following conditions 
are imposed on the LA and governing bodies of all maintained schools covered by this 
Scheme in relation to their budget shares. 

 

 The conditions only apply to governing bodies of maintained schools that have not entered 
into an arrangement with the LA to provide payroll services and/or personnel services. 

 

 A governing body of any maintained school, whether or not the employer of the teachers at 
such a school, which has entered into any arrangement or agreement with a person other 
than the LA to provide payroll and/or personnel services, including. If the school 
administers the payroll itself, shall ensure that any such arrangement or agreement is 
varied to require that person to supply salary, service and pensions data to the LA which 
the LA requires, to submit the annual return of salary and service to Teachers' Pensions 
and to produce its audited contributions certificate. 
 

 The LA will advise schools each year of the timing, format and specification of the 
information required. The governing body shall ensure that any such arrangement or 
agreement is varied to require that any Additional Voluntary Contributions (AVCs) be 
passed to the LA within the time limit specified in the AVC scheme. The governing body 
shall meet any consequential costs from the schools' budget share 

 
2.1.4 Control of assets  
 
Governing bodies are responsible for the safe custody and control of the school's and the LA's 
assets, income and stores. This scheme requires that inventories of all movable non capital assets 
must be held and kept up to date when schools make purchases within this scheme.  
The format of the required inventory and the basic authorisation procedures for disposal of assets 
are set out in the School Finance Manual. 
 

Page 45



Page 10 of 55  

 
2.1.5 Accounting Policies (including year-end procedures) 
Schools must abide by procedures issued by the authority in relation to accounting policies, 
arrangements and year-end procedures. This includes the requirements for consistent financial 
reporting. The year-end procedures issued to schools towards the end of each financial year.  
 
2.1.6 Writing off of debts  
 
The Governing Body should set appropriate limits on the individual value of bad debts that may be 
written off by the Head teacher, and should receive regular reports on any debts written off. Bad 
debts must be submitted to the Governing Body to be written off. The administration relating to this 
area should be in accordance with Financial Regulations.  
 
Any schools experiencing problems recovering money due should contact the Schools Finance for 
advice and support.  
 
2.2 Basis of accounting 
Reports and accounts provided to the LA by schools within the scheme shall be on an accrual 
basis and shall include the projected out-turn.  
 
2.3 Submission of budget plans  
 
Budgets should be prepared in accordance with Schools Financial Handbook issued by the LA to 
schools. Governing Bodies should preferably, approve the budget before the start of the financial 
year. If this is not possible then the Governing Body should give its approval as soon as possible 
in the new financial year. Each school is required to submit the approved budget plan to the LA by 
31 May at the latest, in the format requested by the LA prior to the start of the year, duly 
authorised by the Head teacher and Chair of Governors. It is essential that schools maintain 
accurate and up to date budgets in their financial systems.  
 
The budget plan must be in the format set out in the Schools Financial Procedures Manual and 
include all relevant items of expenditure and income along with any specified supplementary 
information. Schools must take account of any surplus from earlier years and must take account of 
any accumulated deficit when formulating its plan. The LA will provide schools with all income and 
expenditure data that it holds which is necessary to efficient planning by schools such as inflation 
rates and pay rates that it recommends should be used in the budget planning process. Budget 
plans should be submitted within 4 weeks of schools receiving their budget information from the 
LA.  
 
Schools must accept responsibility for the proper coding of income and expenditure to ensure that 
requirements of consistent financial reporting (CFR) are met. 
 
2.3.1 Submission of Financial forecasts 
 
Schools are required to submit a 3-year financial forecast linked to the School Improvement Plan 
in a format required by the LA. The LA will pass on details of income and expenditure inflation 
rates to be used but schools should also try to reflect increases/decreases in pupil numbers, 
salary incremental drift and changes in spending patterns. 
 
Future-year financial forecasts indicate that a school is undertaking effective financial planning 
and so will be used as evidence to support the compliance with the Financial Management 
Standard in Schools (section 2.15) and will be used to support the LA's balance control 
mechanism (see section 4).   
 
2.4 Efficiency and Value for Money 
 

Page 46



Page 11 of 55  

Schools must seek to achieve efficiencies and value for money, to optimise the use of their 
resources and to invest in teaching and learning, taking into account the Authority’s purchasing, 
tendering and contracting requirements. 
It is for heads and governors to determine at school level how to secure better value for money. 
 
There are significant variations in efficiency between similar schools, so it is important for schools 
to review their current expenditure, compare it to other schools, and think about how to make 
improvements. 
 
2.5 Virement  
 
Schools are free to vire between expenditure and income budget heads in their budget shares. 
Governors must determine a procedure for authorising virements between budget heads, 
including financial limits above which the approval of the governors is required. To maintain 
accurate budgetary control, budget virements should be updated on the school's computerised 
financial system at the earliest opportunity. 
 
Records should be kept of virements made and the authorisations obtained from Governors. 
 
2.6 Audit: General  
 
In regard to internal audit, all schools come within the audit regime determined by the LA and will 
be subject to audit as and when deemed necessary by the Section 151 Officer.  
 
The Council has a statutory responsibility to maintain an adequate and effective internal audit 
function and this responsibility has been delegated to the Chief Executive and Director of Finance. 
The Council’s Internal Audit Section provides this service. Schools are required to co-operate both 
with auditors employed by the local authority (internal audit) and with auditors appointed to audit 
the local authority itself (external audit). This includes providing access to schools' records for both 
internal and external auditors. 
 
In regard to internal audit, all schools come within the audit regime determined by the LA and will 
be subject to audit as and when deemed necessary by the Section 151 Officer. In relation to 
external audit, all schools come within the LA external audit regime as determined by the Public 
Sector Audit Appointments PSAA) Ltd. 
 
2.7 Separate external audits  
 
In instances where a school wishes to seek an additional source of assurance at its own expense, 
a governing body is permitted to spend funds from its budget share to obtain external audit 
certification of its accounts, separate from any LA internal or external audit process. Where a 
school chooses to seek such an additional audit it does not remove the requirement that the 
school must also co-operate with the LA's internal and external auditors. If a school chooses to 
exercise this discretion it should ensure that, the appointed auditors are competent and that the 
Director of Children's Services is notified of the appointment.  
 
2.8 Audit of voluntary and private funds  

Schools must have their voluntary and private funds audited annually. They must obtain an audit 
certificate/statement confirming that an audit has been carried out and that in the auditor’s view 
the funds are properly maintained and accounted for. Schools must provide copies of audit 
certificates, for all voluntary and private funds held by the school and of the accounts of any 
trading organisations controlled by the school, to the LA annually. A school refusing to provide 
audit certificates to the LA as required by the scheme is in breach of the scheme and the LA may 
take action on that basis. 

Page 47



Page 12 of 55  

Schools are required to advise Schools Finance Team of any trading organisations controlled by 
the school that are not operated as part of their official or unofficial funds. 

The administration of the “Private” or “Unofficial” funds should be of the same high standard as for 
the main delegated budget. The operation of these funds needs to conform to the LA Financial 
Regulations 

2.9 Register of business interests  

The governing body of each school is required to establish and maintain a register that lists, for 
each member of the governing body and the head teacher and staff. 

 Any business and pecuniary interests they or any members of their immediate family have 

 Details of any other educational establishments that they govern 

 Any relationships between school staff and members of the governing body 

 The governors are also required to keep the register up to date with notification of changes 
through annual review of entries, and to make the register available for inspection by governors, 
staff and parents, and the LA; and to publish the register on a publically available website. 

 Nil returns from staff and governors should be included in the register. Further details and a 
recommended format for the register are set out in the Schools Financial Procedures Manual. 
Declaration of any pecuniary interests should also be made at governors meetings and minuted. 

2.10 Purchasing, tendering and contracting requirements  

Schools are required to abide by the LA's financial regulations and standing orders for this 
scheme in purchasing, tendering and contracting matters. This includes a requirement to assess 
in advance, where relevant, the health and safety competence of contractors, taking account of 
the LA's policies and procedures e.g. the Corporate Health and Safety Policy. 

Schools are required to abide by the Authority's financial regulations and standing orders in 
purchasing, tendering and contracting matters. 
 

• Standing Orders with respect to contracts and ordering procedures; 

• Financial Regulations for Schools; and 

• Health and Safety Management System. 

• Governing bodies should note that although they are empowered to enter into contracts 
in most cases they do so as agents on behalf of the Authority as maintainer of the school 
and the owner of the funds in the budget share. 

 

Schools are however; disapplied from any section of Haringey's Financial Regulations or 
Standing Orders, which requires them to: 

 
• do anything incompatible with any of the provisions of the scheme, or any statutory 

provision, or any EU Procurement Directive; 

• select suppliers only from an approved list; 

• or would permit schools to seek fewer than three tenders or quotations in respect of any 

contract with a value exceeding £10,000 in any one year. 

• Schools may nominate suppliers for inclusion on the Authority's approved list. 

 

2.11 Application of contracts to schools  
 
Schools have the right to opt out of LA arranged contracts except where they have lost that right 
for particular contracts (whenever started) in accordance with a specified written procedure. In 

Page 48



Page 13 of 55  

such cases, they will be bound into the contract for its length (although the contract might contain 
clauses allowing variance of its terms and conditions).  
 
In general, schools, under paragraph 3 of schedule 10 of the Education Act 2002, enter into 
contracts on behalf of the LA as maintainer of the school and owner of the funds in the budget 
share. However, where a governing body has a clear statutory duty, e.g. contracts made by aided 
schools for the employment of staff, the governing body are acting on their own behalf. 

 
2.12 Central funds and earmarking  
 
The LA is authorised to make sums available to schools from central funds, in the form of 
allocations that are additional to and separate from the schools' budget shares. Such allocations 
shall be subject to conditions setting out the purpose or purposes for which the funds may be 
used.  
 
While these conditions need not preclude virement (except, of course, where the funding is 
supported by a specific grant that the LA itself is not permitted to vire), this should not be carried to 
the point of assimilating the allocations into the school's budget share. Such allocations may also 
be sums for Special Educational Needs or other initiatives funded from the central expenditure of 
a LA's School Budget or other LA budget; once again, these should not be assimilated into the 
school's budget share.  
 
Such earmarked funding from centrally retained funds is to be spent only on the purposes for 
which it is given, or on other budget heads for which earmarked funding is given. Earmarked funds 
are to be returned to the LA if not spent within the period for which the earmarked funding was 
given. 
The LA will not make any deduction, in respect of interest costs to the LA, from payments to 
schools of devolved specific grant. 
 
The LA will not make any deduction, in respect of interest costs to the LA, from payments to 
schools of devolved specific grant. 
 
2.13 Spending for the purposes of the school  
 
Although s.50 (3) of the Act allows governing bodies to spend budget shares for the purposes of 
the school, this is subject to regulations made by the Secretary of State and any provisions of the 
scheme. By virtue of section 50(3A0 (which came into force on 1st April 2011), amounts spent by 
governing bodies on community facilities or services under section 27 of the Education Act 2002 
will be treated as if spent for any purposes of the school.  
 
Under s.50 (3) (b) the Secretary of State may prescribe additional purposes for which expenditure 
of the budget share may occur. He has done so in the School Budget Shares (Prescribed 
Purposes) (England) Regulations 2002 (SI 2002/378), which have been amended by the School 
Budget Shares (Prescribed Purposes) (England) (Amendment) Regulations 2010 (SI 2010/190). 
These allow schools to spend their budgets on pupils who are on roll of other maintained schools 
or academies. 
 
Governing bodies are reminded that the prime purpose of the school and its consequent 
expenditure should be the provision of teaching and learning for the pupils and students attending 
the school.  
 
In addition, the following restrictions shall apply:  

 Expenses incurred in connection with staff farewell celebrations and other such social 
events shall not be funded from the schools delegated budget.  

Page 49



Page 14 of 55  

 The advice of the Local authority should be sought in relation to proposed grants to 
individuals or groups since these may not be classifiable as being for the purposes of the 
school.  

 
The costs of non-school activities taking place on school premises are specifically excluded from 
schools' budget shares; these include expenditure on:  

 Adult and community education, student awards, youth services, nursery schools, boarding 
houses, pupil referral units and secure units;  

 Pre and post school activities, crèches, nurseries, and other self-financing activities. 
Additional costs in providing these activities must be met from income raised from charges 
to participants for the activities;  

 Non-curriculum activities. The costs of trips such as skiing must be met from charges to 
participants;  

 Fund raising activities.  
 
2.14 Capital spending from budget shares  
 
Governing bodies are permitted to use their budget shares to meet the cost of capital expenditure 
on the school premises in addition to any devolved capital grant. This includes expenditure by the 
governing body of a voluntary aided school on work that is their responsibility under paragraph 3 
of Schedule 3 of the Schools Standards and Framework Act 1998.  
 
If the expected capital expenditure from the budget share in any one year, the governing body 
must submit detailed proposals to the Director of Children's Services prior to taking any other 
action and take into account any advice from the Director of Children's Services as to the merits or 
not of the proposed expenditure.  
 
Where owns the premises, the governing body shall seek the consent of the LA to the proposed 
works, but such consent will only be withheld on health and safety grounds. The reason for these 
requirements is to help ensure compliance with the current School Premises Regulations and DfE 
Construction Standards, and health and safety legislation.  
 
2.15 Notice of concern  
 
The LA may issue a notice of concern to the governing body of any school it maintains where, in 
the opinion of the Director of Children's Services, the school has failed to comply with any 
provisions of this scheme, or where actions need to be taken to safeguard the financial position of 
the local authority or the school.  
 
Such a notice will set out the reasons and evidence for it being made and may place on the 
governing body restrictions, limitations or prohibitions in relation to the management of funds 
delegated to it. These may include:  

 Insisting that relevant staff undertake appropriate training to address any identified 
weaknesses in the financial management of the school;  

 Insisting that an appropriately trained/qualified person chairs the finance committee of the 
governing body;  

 Placing more stringent restrictions or conditions on the day-to-day financial management of 
a school than the scheme requires for all schools - such as the provision of monthly 
accounts to the local authority;  

 Insisting on regular financial monitoring meetings at the school attended by local authority 
officers;  

 Requiring a governing body to buy into a local authority's financial management systems;  

 Imposing restrictions or limitations on the manner in which a school manages extended 
school activity funded from within its delegated budget share -for example by requiring a 
school to submit income projections and/or financial monitoring reports on such activities.  

 

Page 50



Page 15 of 55  

The notice will clearly state what these requirements are and the way in which and the time by 
which such requirements must be complied with in order for the notice to be withdrawn. It will also 
state the actions that the LA may take where the governing body does not comply with the notice.  
 
2.16 Schools Financial Value Standard (SFVS) 
 
All LA maintained schools (including nursery schools and pupil referral units that have a delegated 
budget) must demonstrate compliance with the Schools Financial Value Standard (SFVS) and 
complete the assessment form on an annual basis. It is for the school to determine at which time 
of year they wish to complete the form. 
 
Governors must demonstrate compliance through the submission of the SVFS assessment form 
signed by the Chair of Governors. The form must include a summary of remedial actions with a 
clear timetable, ensuring that each action has a specified deadline and an agreed owner. 
Governors must monitor the progress of these actions to ensure that all actions are cleared within 
specified deadlines.  
 
2.17 Fraud 
 
All schools must have a robust system of controls to safeguard themselves against fraudulent or 
improper use of public money and assets. 
 
The governing body and head teacher must inform all staff of school policies and procedures 
related to fraud and theft, the controls in place to prevent them and the consequences of 
breaching those controls. This information must also be included in the induction for new school 
staff and governors.

Page 51



Page 16 of 55  

 
SECTION 3: INSTALMENTS OF THE BUDGET SHARE, BANKING ARRANGEMENTS  
 
For the purposes of this section, Budget Share includes any place-led funding for special schools 
or pupil referral units. 
 
3.1 Frequency of Instalments  
 
Governing bodies shall allocated a cash sum each year by LA, called their Schools Budget Share. 
The cash sum will advanced to schools at predetermined monthly intervals during the course of 
the year. Each allocation shall be in the form of a BACS transfer into the School's bank account. 
The Schools Budget Share shall remain Haringey’s property until spent by the governing body or 
head teacher as Haringey’s agent.  
 
Top up payments for pupils with high needs should be made on a monthly basis unless alternative 
arrangements have been agreed with the provider. 
 
3.2 Proportion of Budget Share payable at each instalment  

 
The proportion of the budget share to be made available to schools shall be calculated based on 
one twelfth of the annual school budget share per month. For schools with bank accounts the 
first instalment shall be made on or before the 15th of April and subsequent instalments shall 
be made on or before the 15th of each subsequent month. If this falls on a Saturday, Sunday 
or Bank Holiday the instalment will be made on the preceding working day. Transfers will be 
made directly into school bank accounts. 
 
3.3 Interest clawback  
 
There is no interest clawback from the schools budget share.  
 
3.3.1 Interest on late share payments  
 
LA will add interest to any late payments of budget share instalments to schools, where such late 
payment is the result of a LA error. The interest rate used will be the current Bank of England 
base rate.  
 
3.4 Budget Shares for Closing Schools  
 
Where a date has been approved under the relevant sections of the Act to close a school, the 
payment of budget allocations will continue up to the date of closure in the same manner as 
hitherto. However, the maximum amount that will be so transferred to the control of the governors 
will be the pro rata share of what would have been the annual budget share had the school not 
been discontinued. This is (including any deductions in respect of deficits from earlier years) 
together with any agreed additions to meet exceptional costs approved by the LA from central 
budgets. Consequently, the percentages set out in paragraph 3.1 above may need to be adjusted 
appropriately depending on the date of closure. Where the closure is phased over more than one 
financial year these arrangements will only apply in the last financial year in which the LA 
maintains the school.  
 
3.5 Bank and Building Society Accounts  
 
All governing bodies may have an external bank account into which their budget share 
instalments are paid subject to the requirements set out in 3.5.1 below. Where schools have such 
accounts, they shall be allowed to retain all interest payable on the account.  
 

Page 52



Page 17 of 55  

A school with a bank account with the Authority's banker, which wishes to opt out of the 
arrangement and set up an account with a different banker, must give three months written 
notice to the Authority. 
 
All schools have responsibility for matters in respect of PAYE as they have their own bank 
accounts and have delegated payroll responsibility.  
 
Any school requesting a bank account shall not be able to have one until school cleared all deficit. 
The schools must not overdrawn as a matter of course and should notify of any instance of going 
overdrawn.  
 
Where a school opens an external bank account the LA shall if the school desires, transfer 
immediately to the account an amount agreed by both the school and the LA as the estimated 
surplus balance held by the LA. In respect of the school’s budget share, on the basis that there is 
then a subsequent correction when accounts for the relevant year are closed. 
 
3.5.1 Restrictions on Accounts  
 
Schools are free to open a School Bank Current Account with a banker of their choice from the 
Authority's approved list as follows: 
• Royal Bank of Scotland 
• Nat West J 
• Lloyds TSB 
• Bank of Scotland 
• Barclays 
• HSBC 
• Nationwide Building Society 
 
Responsibility for opening a school's bank account will be with the school who will notify to the 
bank at which they have opened an account. Bank accounts will be in the name of the governing 
body as agents of and cheques will be in their name. Cheque signatories will be determined by 
the governing body and notified to the Director, but must be employees of the school or officers of 
where delegation has been withdrawn. Two signatories will be required for all cheques and other 
documents withdrawing funds from the bank.  
 
The opening of all accounts shall be authorised by the governing body that shall set out, in a 
formal memorandum, the arrangements covering the operation of accounts, including any 
transfers between accounts and cheque signing arrangements. The account mandate should 
acknowledge that:  

  is the owner of the funds in the account;  

 it is entitled to receive bank statements;  

  it can take control of the account if the LA suspends the school’s right to a delegated 
budget.  

 
The operation of systems such as Bankers Automatic Clearing System (BACS) and other means 
of electronic transfer of funds shall also be subject to the same level of control. The bank shall 
also be advised that the account must not become overdrawn. Schools are in any case, prohibited 
from borrowing to finance a revenue deficit under the terms of the Scheme for Financing Schools 
(see paragraph 3.6).  
 
Detailed procedures on the use of bank accounts are contained in the Schools' Financial 
Procedures Manual.  
 
 
 
 

Page 53



Page 18 of 55  

3.6 Borrowing by Schools  
 
Schools may borrow money only with the written permission of the Secretary of State. The 
general position is that schools will only granted permission for borrowing in exceptional 
circumstances. Any request to the Secretary of State for such permission must have been subject 
to prior notification to. From time to time, the Secretary of State may introduce limited schemes to 
meet broader policy objectives. Schools are allowed to use any scheme that the Secretary of 
State has said is available to schools without specific approval. Governing bodies do not act as 
agents of the LA when repaying loans. 
 
Schools may not use credit cards or overdrafts. However, the use of LA purchase card is 
encouraged, as this can be a useful means of facilitating electronic purchases. 
This provision does not apply to loan schemes run by the Authority (see sections 4.9/4.10) 
 
The Scheme for Financing Schools places a duty on the governing body of all maintained schools 
to plan and conduct its affairs to remain solvent. Schools must not borrow to finance a deficit, 
including through a bank overdraft. Schools shall apply good financial management practice by 
forecasting their cash position with reasonable accuracy to ensure that they refrain from incurring 
a revenue deficit, as well as maximising interest from available funds.  
 
The general provision in the paragraphs above forbidding governing bodies to borrow money shall 
not apply to schemes operated by as set out in paragraphs 4.9 and 4.10. Schools are reminded 
that using credit cards constitutes a form of borrowing, and accordingly schools are not permitted 
to apply or use credit cards for borrowing funds purposes. Schools are permitted to use any 
scheme which the Secretary of State has said is available to schools without current approval, 
currently including the Salix scheme, which is designed to promote energy saving. 
 
Schools are not permitted to enter into agreements such as leases or rental agreements 
without the express permission of the Chief Financial Officer and must contact the Authority's 
Treasury and Banking section for advice if considering entering into such an agreement. 
 
The governing body should authorise the use of procurement cards, including charge cards only 
after considering the potential risk and reviewing the procedures detailed in the Schools Financial 
Procedures Manual.  
 
3.7 Other provisions  
 
The rules and guidance relating to banking arrangements are set out in Financial 
Regulations. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 54



Page 19 of 55  

SECTION 4: THE TREATMENT OF SURPLUS AND DEFICIT BALANCES ARISING 

IN RELATION TO BUDGET SHARES  
 
4.1 The right to carry forward surplus balances  
 
All schools will be able to carry forward surplus balances from one year to the next. The amount 
of surplus balance to be carried forward for each school will be shown in the out-turn statement 
published by the LA under s.52 of the 1998 Act. The surplus will be calculated by taking the 
difference between expenditure and the school's budget share for the year plus or minus any 
balance brought forward from the previous year.  

 
The amount of a surplus balance will be shown in the relevant out-turn statement published in 
accordance with directions given by the Secretary of State under S.251 of the Apprenticeships, 
Skills, Children and Learning Act 2009. There may be commitments against any figure shown in 
such a statement. 

 
4.2 Controls on surplus balances  
 
Surplus balances held by schools as permitted under 4.1 of this scheme are subject to the 

following restrictions: 

 

a.  Authority shall calculate by 31 May each year the surplus balance, if any, held 

by each school as at the preceding 31 March. For this purpose, the balance will 

be the recurrent balance as defined in the Consistent Financial Reporting 

Framework. Governing bodies will be required to provide to the Authority as 

part of their final account return an analysis of the CFR balance showing, 

assigned planned savings and prior year commitments. The amounts identified 

under these headings must be determined in line with the requirements set out 

in the following sections. 

 

b.  Authority shall deduct any amounts, which the governing body of the school 

has declared to be assigned for specific purposes permitted by the authority, 

and which the authority is satisfied are properly assigned. To count as properly 

assigned, amounts must not be retained beyond the period stipulated for the 

purpose in question, without the consent of the Authority. In considering whether 

any sums are properly assigned the Authority may also take into account any 

previously declared assignment of such sums but may not take any change in 

planned assignments to be the sole reason for considering that a sum is not 

properly assigned. To satisfy the Authority of the proper assignment of funds 

each governing body shall provide to the Authority by the end of January a list 

of the schemes for which funds have been set aside together with the amounts 

so assigned and the period in which they will be used. The assignments should 

be of a type and for a period that accords with the instructions issued by the 

Authority. The governing body will need to have approved and minuted the 

decision to put aside funds no later than 31st December. 

 

c. if the result is a sum greater than 5% of the current year's budget share for 

secondary schools, 8% for primary and special schools, or £10,000 (where 

that is greater than either percentage threshold), then the Authority shall 

deduct from the current year's budget share an amount equal to the excess

Page 55



 
 

Page 20 of 55 

 
 

Funds deriving from sources other than the Authority will be taken into account in this 

calculation if paid into the budget share account of the school, whether under 

provisions in this scheme or otherwise. 

 
Funds held in relation to a school's exercise of powers under s.27 of the Education 

Act 2002 (community facilities) that will not be taken into account unless added to the 

budget share surplus by the school as permitted by the Authority. 

 
The total of any amounts deducted from schools' budget shares by the Authority 

under this provision are to be applied to the Schools Budget of the Authority. 

 
4.3 Obligation to carry forward deficit balances  

 
Where a school completes a year-end with a deficit, the school's deficit balance to be 
brought forward will be identified in the school's S.251 out-turn statement agreed and 
published by. Except in exceptional circumstances, the school shall repay the deficit in the 
following financial year.  
 
4.4 Planning for deficit balances  
 
Schools may only plan for a deficit budget in accordance with the terms of para. 4.9. 
 
4.5 Charging of interest on deficit budgets  
 
Maintained schools will be charged for deficit balances on licensed deficits at the bank base 
rate as at 1 April of the financial year on the agreed deficit amount. Where deficit balances 
remain and are not approved as a licensed deficit position then interest will be chargeable on 
the budgeted deficit amount. The interest chargeable to the schools will be based on 1 % 
above Bank Base rate as at 1 April of the financial year.  
 
4.6 Writing off deficits  
 
The LA has no power to write off the deficit balance of any school.  
 
The LA may give assistance towards the elimination of a deficit balance through the 
allocation of a cash sum from the authority’s schools budget,  (from a centrally held budget 
specified for the purpose of expenditure on special schools and pupil referral units in 
financial difficulty. In respect of mainstream maintained school, from a de-delegated 
contingency budget where Schools Forum has agreed this. 

 
4.7 Balances of closing and amalgamated schools  
 
When a school closes, the final established balance (whether surplus or deficit) of the school 
will be transferred to. The balance will not be transferred to the successor school, except 
that a surplus transfers to an academy where a school converts to academy status under 
section 4 (1) (a) of the Academies Act 2010. 
 
Where an Infant and a Junior School amalgamate, the LA will make an allocation to the new 
school

 

that has the effect of giving them the benefit of an additional sum, which is equal to 
the balances of the relevant closing schools. 

 

4.8 Borrowing for Agreed Purposes 

The general provision in paragraph 3.7.1 above forbidding governing bodies to borrow 

Page 56



Page 21 of 55 

 

money shall not apply to deficit management schemes run by the LA as set out in this 
section. 

 
4.9 Licensed deficits  

 

1. Schools are able to apply to the Authority for permission to incur a deficit budget, 
which will be eliminated within an agreed period. The Haringey Licensed Deficit 
application form should be used, as a guide, the Authority would normally expect 
schools to eliminate deficits within one to three years, and will not agree to periods 
longer than five years. 

 

2. The Licensed Deficit may be used: 

 

(a) to spread the effects of an unforeseen reduction in pupil numbers; 

(b) to spread the effects of changes in the school's budget arising from formula 
funding changes the effect of which cannot be met either from a single year's 
budget share or accumulated balances; 

(c) exceptionally, to purchase large items of equipment, such as information and 
communication technology equipment, or to carry out or complete, major 
repairs or building projects. Schools would normally be expected to have 
accumulated savings to fund such expenditure; and 

(d) to eliminate a brought forward, unforeseen, budget deficit from a preceding 
year. It is unlikely that such a deficit will be licensed for more than one   year. 
 

3. The school will need to demonstrate, by way of a robust Recovery Plan, how the 
 deficit will be eliminated over the agreed period. The school will report, as part of its 
 regular budget monitoring, progress on eliminating the deficit. 

4. The Authority can agree to license deficits in up to 30%   of the aggregate of all 
 schools balances (including deficits agreed in previous financial years). To ensure 
 equity in the treatment of applications for licensed deficits the Authority  will review all 
 applications received by the 31st May each year and will inform schools by 30th June 
 of the decision in relation to their application. If the total of applications (including 
 licensed deficits agreed in previous years) exceeds 30%, he Authority may require 
 schools to reduce their deficits with immediate effect. 

Regular meetings will be required with schools with deficit budgets with representatives of 
the Chief Finance Officer to review the progress towards reducing the deficit budget.  
 
The funding to allow such a deficit budget shall be provided from the collective surplus of 
school balances held by on behalf of schools. There will be a maximum of three years for 
repayment.  
 

Page 57



Page 22 of 55 

 

SECTION 5: INCOME  
 
5.1 Income from lettings  
 
Schools may retain income from lettings of the school premises that would otherwise accrue 
to the LA, subject to alternative provisions arising from any joint use or PFI agreements. 
Schools may cross-subsidise lettings for community and voluntary use with income from 
other lettings, provided the governing body is satisfied that this will not interfere to a 
significant extent with the performance of any duties imposed on them by the Education 
Acts, including the requirement to conduct the school with a view to promoting high 
standards of educational achievement. However, schools whose premises are owned by the 
LA shall be required to have regard to directions issued by the LA as to the use of school 
premises. Such directions are only those permitted under the School Standards and 
framework Act 1998 for various categories. The administration of this area should be carried 
out in accordance with Financial Regulations issued by the LA to schools.  
 
The governing body shall be responsible for arrangements for the collection, custody, control 
and banking of income that the school has authority to collect and account for. The head 
teacher must complete regular financial returns of income banked (including the value of 
VAT). All income collected must be accounted for separately by collecting officers and not 
mixed with other official, voluntary or private funds. In addition, income collected must not be 
used to cash personal or other cheques.  

 
Income from lettings of school premises should not normally be payable into voluntary or 
private funds held by the school.  

 
For any schools under a PFI/PPP agreement alternative arrangements may exist for lettings 
income and this is contained in Section 9.  
 
5.2 Income from fees and charges  

 
The governing body may retain income from fees and charges except where a service 
provided by Haringey from centrally retained funds. However, schools are required to have 
regard to all policy statements on charging produced by Haringey as set out in the Schools 
Financial Procedures Manual.  
 
5.3 Income from fund raising activities  
 
Schools may retain income from fund-raising activities.  
 
5.4 Income from sale of assets  
 
Schools may retain the proceeds of sale of assets except in cases where the asset was 
purchased with non-delegated funds (in which case it will be for LA to decide whether the 
school should retain the proceeds), or the asset concerned is land or buildings forming part 
of the school premises and is owned by Haringey. (See also Section 2: 1.4) 
 
The procedures carried out for any sales should be in accordance with Schools Financial 
Handbook. 
 
5.5 Administrative procedures for the collection of income 
 
Schools will be required to apply proper procedures for the accounting and collection of VAT 
on fees and charges arising from fund-raising activities and the sale of assets. Haringey will 

Page 58



Page 23 of 55 

 

establish administrative procedures published in the Schools Finance Procedures Manual for 
the collection of income that may vary from time to time in the light of advice from HMRC. 
 
5.6 Purposes for which income may be used 
 
Income from the sale of assets purchased with delegated funds may only be spent for the 
purposes of the school. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 59



Page 24 of 55 

 

SECTION 6: THE CHARGING OF SCHOOL BUDGET SHARES  
 
6.1 General provision  
 
The budget share of a school may be charged by the LA without the prior consent of the 
governing body in circumstances set out below (6.2) 
 
The LA shall consult a school as to the intention to so charge, and shall notify a school when 
it has been done.  
 
Schools are reminded that the LA cannot act unreasonably in the exercise of any power 
given by this scheme, or it may be the subject of a direction under Section 496 of the 
Education Act 1996. The LA may only charge the actual cost incurred and the LA may incur 
a cost only for matters where it has a statutory duty to provide. If that statutory duty belongs 
to others, the LA has no power to intervene.  
 
6.1.1 Charging of salaries at actual cost  
 
The LA is required to charge school budget shares with the salaries of school based staff at 
actual cost.  
 
6.2 Circumstances in which charges may be made  
 
6.2.1 Recovery of premature retirement costs that have been incurred without the prior 
written agreement of the LA to bear such costs. The amount chargeable will be the amounts 
in excess over any amount agreed by the LA.  
 
6.2.2 Recovery of other expenditure incurred to secure resignations where the school had 
not followed LA advice.  
 
6.2.3 Recovery of awards by courts and industrial tribunals against the LA arising from 
action or inaction by the governing body contrary to the LA's advice.  
 
6.2.4 Recovery of expenditure by the LA in carrying out health and safety work or capital 
expenditure for which the LA is liable where funds have been delegated to the governing 
body for such work, but the governing body has failed to carry out the required work to a 
satisfactory standard.  
 
6.2.5 Recovery of expenditure by the LA incurred in making good defects in building work 
carried out by governing bodies to premises owned by the LA or the school has voluntary 
controlled status.  
 
6.2.6 Expenditure incurred by the authority in insuring its own interests in a school where 
funding has been delegated but the school has failed to demonstrate that it has arranged 
cover to the minimum standard specified by the Council's Insurance Manager. The minimum 
specified level shall not be higher than the level arranged by the LA for schools that have 
decided to buy back into the in-house insurance package from their delegated budgets. 

 
6.2.7 Recovery of monies due from a school for services provided to the school, where a 
dispute over the monies due has been referred to a disputes procedure set out in a service 
level agreement, and the result is that monies are owed by the school to the LA; 

 
6.2.8 Recovery of penalties, including any interest, imposed on the LA by the Board of Inland 
Revenue, the Contributions Agency, HM Revenue & Customs. Teachers’ Pension or 

Page 60



Page 25 of 55 

 

regulatory authority as a result of school negligence, or where governing bodies fail to 
comply with the requirements set out in the Schools Financial Procedures Manual.  
 
6.2.9 Recovery of sums to correct errors made by the LA in calculating charges to a budget 
share (e.g. pension deductions). No such deductions will take place if the error relates to a 
period for which the accounts been closed.  
 
6.2.10 Recovery of additional costs incurred by the LA arising from decisions by the 
governing body on the length of the school day e.g. transport costs and failure to notify the 
LA of non-pupil days resulting in unnecessary costs.  

 
6.2.11 Recovery of legal costs incurred by the LA because the governing body did not 
accept the advice of the LA.  
 
6.2.12 Recovery of the cost of necessary health and safety training for staff employed by the 
LA, where funding for training has been delegated but the necessary training not carried out.  
 
6.2.13 Recovery of any compensation paid to a lender where a school enters into a contract 
for borrowing beyond its legal powers, and the contract is of no effect.  
 
6.2.14 Recovery of any compensation for costs incurred by the LA if a school fails to pay a 
debt and which subsequently falls upon the LA to pay. This will include interest payments as 
per the Late Payment of Commercial Debts Act 1998.  
 
6.2.15 Costs incurred by the authority in securing provision specified in a statement of SEN 
where the governing body of a school fails to secure such provision despite the delegation of 
funds in respect of that statement;  
 
6.2.16 Costs incurred by the LA due to submission by the school of incorrect data; 
 
6.2.17 Recovery of amounts spent from specific grants on ineligible purposes. 
 
6.2.18 Recovery of costs incurred by the LA where the school has failed to return information 
required by the LA on time, or where the information has to be corrected. This will be 
charged in accordance with the list of charges under service level agreements for ad hoc 
work, where these are applicable.  
 
6.2.19 Recovery of penalties imposed on the LA by copyright or similar agencies because of 
a governing body failing in its responsibility for copyright or similar compliance.  
 
6.2.20 Recovery of costs incurred by the LA, because the governing body did not abide by 
the Scheme, resulting in additional work for Schools Finance or Internal Audit beyond their 
regular programme of work.  
 
6.2.21 Costs incurred by the LA because of withdrawal of delegation.  
 
6.2.22 many grant making organisations require that bids for grants for specific projects have 
the support of the LA before the bid is submitted. In the event that a school that had received 
a grant failed to complete the project in a satisfactory manner, the LA would be required to 
return the funding. In such a case, the LA will recover the funds from the school's account.  
 
6.2.23 Recovery of any costs to the LA because of the governing body being in breach of the 
terms of a contract.  
 

Page 61



Page 26 of 55 

 

6.2.24 at the end of the financial year, recovery of unspent balances of allocations from 
centrally held budgets. Where actual expenditure did not meet the conditions of the grant aid 
or specific purposes for which the allocation was made, the value of that expenditure will be 
included in the unspent balance. In the case of grant-aided expenditure, the recovery will 
include both the values of the grant aid and the LA's contribution unless the matched funding 
came from the school's delegated budget.  
 
6.2.25 Recovery of interest claw-back due on budget shares.  
 
6.2.26 Recovery of the cost of work done in respect of teacher pension remittance and 
records for schools using non-LA payroll contractors, the charge to be the minimum needed 
to meet the cost of the Authority's compliance with its statutory obligations.  
 
6.2.20 Costs incurred by the authority in administering admissions appeals, where the local 
authority is the admissions authority and the funding for admissions appeals has been 
delegated to all schools as part of their formula allocation. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 62



Page 27 of 55 

 

SECTION 7: TAXATION  
 
7.1 Value Added Tax (VAT)  
 
7.1.1 The Authority has established procedures to enable schools to utilise the Authority's 
ability to reclaim VAT on expenditure relating to non-business activity. 
 
7.1.2 These procedures are set out in separate guidance in the following documents: 
 
• Financial Regulations for Schools 
• Financial Management Handbook and 
• Individual guidance notes issued to schools. 
 
7.1.3 Latest versions of the Authority's VAT guidance are available via its Intranet 
(Harinet). 
 
7.1.4 Amounts reclaimed through these procedures will be passed back to the school in 
the month following receipt of the school's VAT claim assuming that an accurate claim is 
received before the notified deadline. 

 
Where H.M. Revenues & Customs discovers errors in the operation of the VAT system 
within maintained schools they will seek to recover the appropriate portion of the tax from 
Haringey. Any amounts paid to H.M. Revenues & Customs this way will be recovered from 
the school's delegated budget.  
 
7.2 Construction Industry Taxation Scheme (CITS)  
 
With effect from April 2007, schools are exempt from CIS. This exemption means that where 
a contract is between the school/governing body and the subcontractor (i.e. not with LA) CIS 
reporting is not required. Schools will still have a responsibility for checking employment 
status for payments to subcontractors employed by schools as contractors for work of a 
construction nature are subject to special verification and reporting and this is contained in a 
separate guidance note detailing these arrangements published in the Schools Financial 
Procedures Manual. Each school shall make returns in a prescribed format providing details 
of payments made under the Construction Industry Tax declaration scheme.  
 
Where H.M. Revenue & Customs discovers errors in the operation of the CITS system within 
maintained schools they will seek to recover the appropriate portion of the tax from 
Haringey. Any amounts paid to H.M. Revenue & Customs in this way will be recovered from 
the Schools Budget Share.  
 
7.3 Payments to individuals claiming to be self-employed  
 
Schools are required to abide by procedures issued by the LA in connection with payments 
to individuals claiming to be self-employed.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 63



Page 28 of 55 

 

 
SECTION 8: THE PROVISION OF SERVICES AND FACILITIES BY THE AUTHORITY  
 
8.1 Provision of services from centrally retained budgets  
 
The LA will determine on what basis services from centrally retained funds will be provided 
to schools, but the LA will not discriminate in its provision of services based on categories of 
schools except where such discrimination is justified by differences in statutory duties.  
 
8.2 Provision of services bought back from the authority using delegated budgets  
 
Service Level Agreements (SLA) will be available to schools by February 28th for the 
following financial year. The SLA documents will include prices of services so that schools 
can include the estimated costs in their budget plans. Schools are required to indicate 
whether they wish to purchase services as soon as possible and by no later than 31st May 
each year (except see Section 10 concerning insurance). Schools are required to give two 
months’ notice if they wish to cancel a SLA during the year. 
 
If the Authority under the terms of a SLA provides services or facilities, whether "free" or on 
a buy back basis, the terms of any such agreement, starting on or after the inception of the 
Scheme, will be reviewed at least every three years. 
 
When a service is provided, for which funding is not retained centrally by  under the 
Regulations made under Section 45A of the Act, it must be offered at prices which are set to 
cover the costs of providing the service overall, even if schools are charged at differential 
rates.  
 
8.2.1 Packaging  
 
Any buyback basis, which is provided by LA, must be offered in a way, that does not 
unreasonably restrict schools' freedom of choice among the services available, and where 
practicable, this will include provision on a service-by-service basis as well as in packages of 
services. 
 
8.3 Service Level Agreements  
 
8.3.1 If services or facilities are provided under a service level agreement -whether free or 
on a buyback basis -the terms of any such agreement starting on or after the inception of the 
scheme will be reviewed at least every three years if the agreement lasts longer than that. 
Centrally arranged premises and liability insurance are excluded from these requirements as 
to service supply, as the limitations envisaged may be impracticable for insurance purposes. 
 
8.3.2 Where services are offered by the LA they will be available on the basis of buy-back for 
an extended period and/or on an ad-hoc basis. Different rates will apply to the different types 
of agreement. 
 
8.3.3 Service Level Agreements must be in place at least one month before the start of the 
financial year in which they are effective. Schools must have at least one month to consider 
Schools are required to give two months’ notice if they wish to cancel a SLA during the 
year. 
 
8.4 Teachers Pensions  
 

Page 64



Page 29 of 55 

 

All governing bodies should submit an annual return of salary and service to the LA. 
Governing bodies must also ensure that details of Additional Voluntary Contributions (AVCs) 
are passed to the LA within the time limit shown in the AVC scheme.  
 
In order to ensure that the performance of the duty on  to supply Teachers Pensions with 
information under the Teachers' Pensions Regulations 1997, the following conditions are 
imposed on  and governing bodies of all maintained schools covered by this Scheme in 
relation to their budget shares.  
The conditions only apply to governing bodies of maintained schools who have not entered 
into an arrangement with the Authority to provide payroll services.  All governing bodies of 
maintained school, which have entered into any arrangement or agreement with a person 
other than the LA to provide payroll services, shall ensure that any such arrangement or 
agreement varied to require that person to supply salary, service and pensions data to the 
LA. As the LA, requires to submit its monthly return of salary and service to Teachers' 
Pensions and to produce its audited contributions certificate. LA will advise schools of the 
timing, format and specification of the information required.  
 
A governing body shall also ensure that any such arrangement or agreement is varied to 
require that Additional Voluntary Contributions (AVCs) are passed to the LA within the time 
limit specified in the AVC scheme. The governing body shall meet any consequential costs 
from the school's budget share.  
 
A governing body of any maintained school, which directly administers its payroll, shall 
supply salary, service and pensions data to the LA, which Haringey, as the LA, requires to 
submit its annual return of salary and service to Teachers' Pensions and to produce its 
audited contributions certificate.  LA will advise schools each year of the timing, format and 
specification of the information required from each school.  
 
A governing body shall also ensure that Additional Voluntary Contributions (AVCs) are 
passed to the LA within the time limit specified in the AVC scheme. The governing body shall 
meet any consequential costs from the school's budget share.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 65



Page 30 of 55 

 

SECTION 9: PRIVATE FINANCE INITIATIVES/PUBLIC PRIVATE 

PARTNERSHIPS  
 
9.1 Private Finance Initiative (PFI)  
 
Haringey, as the LA, will consult and reach agreement with governing bodies of schools 
regarding the implementation of any Private Finance Initiative schemes for specific services.  
 
These regulations will deal with a number of issues relating to PFI Schemes including the 
reaching of agreements with the governing bodies of schools as to the basis of charges 
relating to PFI/PPP schemes; the treatment of income from third party lettings and the 
treatment of monies withheld from contractors due to poor performance. All of these 
regulations will be contained in a school specific 'Governing Body Agreement' that the school 
will be required to sign before being included within any PFI contract. This agreement is 
between the LA and governing body and sets out details of the services provided under the 
PFI contract and the schools financial contributions.  
 
The LA has the power to charge to a school's budget share amounts agreed under a 
PFI/PPP scheme entered into by the school governing body.  
 

Page 66



Page 31 of 55 

 

SECTION 10: INSURANCE  
 
 
10.1 Insurance Cover 
 
10.1.1 Where funds for insurance are delegated to any school, the Authority will require the 
school to demonstrate that cover relevant to the Authority's insurable interests, under a 
policy arranged by the governing body, is at least as good as the relevant minimum cover 
arranged by the Authority. If the Authority makes such arrangements, either paid for from 
central funds or from contributions from schools' delegated budgets. 
 
10.1.2 Responsibility for insurance is delegated to schools in Haringey; therefore, the onus 
is on schools not using the Authority's insurance services to demonstrate to the Authority 
that they have adequate insurance. To safeguard the Authority's assets and employees the 
Authority will, by default, insure all community schools and any insurable interest it considers 
necessary in respect of all other schools from April 1st to March 31st each year unless a 
school has provided proof of adequate cover by March 31st preceding the start of the 
financial year. 
 
10.1.3 Where the Authority still has an insurable interest, their interest must be noted on the 
policy. Details of proposed insurance arrangements must be supplied to the Authority's Risk 
and Insurance Manager before contracts are entered into and confirmation of renewal must 
be supplied on an annual basis within 14 days of the renewal date. 

Page 67



Page 32 of 55 

 

SECTION 11: MISCELLANEOUS  
 
11.1 Right of access to information  
 
Governing bodies shall supply the LA with whatever information is required in order for the 
LA to satisfy itself that the school is managing its delegated finances satisfactorily, or using 
earmarked funds for their proper purposes. In normal circumstances the LA will not require 
any more information than is set out in other sections of this scheme and this provision will 
only be followed where there are concerns about the state of a school's financial 
management arrangements.  

 
11.2 Liability of governors  
 
Because the governing body is a corporate body and because of the terms of s.50 (7) of the 
School Standards and Framework Act 1998, governors of maintained schools would not 
incur personal liability in the exercise of their power to spend the delegated budget share 
provided they act in good faith.  
 
A fraudulent act is an example of behaviour that is not in good faith. Breaches of the 
Scheme or rejecting LA advice as to financial management are not in themselves 
necessarily breaches of good faith.  
 
11.3 Governors' expenses  
 
The LA shall have the power to delegate to the governing body of a school yet to receive a 
delegated budget, funds to meet governors' expenses at rates set by the LA.  
 
Under section 50 (5) of the Act only allowances in respect of purposes specified in 
regulations under section 19 of the Education Act 2002 may be paid to governors from a 
school's delegated budget share. Schools are expressly forbidden from paying any other 
allowances to governors.  
 
Schools are also barred from payment of expenses duplicating those paid by the Secretary 
of State to additional governors appointed by him to schools under special measures.  
 
11.4 Responsibility for legal costs  

 
Legal costs incurred by the governing body arising from legal actions, (although the 
responsibility of the LA as part of the cost of maintaining the school unless they relate to the 
statutory responsibility of aided school governors for buildings) may be charged to the 
school's budget share unless the governing body has followed LA advice. Schools normally 
will not reimbursed for the cost of legal actions or costs awarded against the LA where the 
school has not followed the advice of the LA 
 
This is separate from the cost of legal advice provided which may be obtained by the school, 
will be paid for by the school in accordance with the arrangements the school has made for 
obtaining its legal advice.  
 
Governors of voluntary aided schools are reminded that no legal costs relating to the 
governors statutory duties for buildings can be a charge on the LA for any reason as these 
are not part of the costs to the LA of maintaining a voluntary aided school.  
 
Occasions might arise where the governors believe there is a conflict of interest between 
themselves and the LA. Where that is the case, it is for the school to discuss this view with 

Page 68



Page 33 of 55 

 

the LA in order to reach agreement about whether such conflict does exist or might 
reasonably expected to exist.  
 
Where agreement is reached on this point, the LA will need to satisfy itself that the source of 
the governor's legal advice was appropriate (the diocese for example in the case of a 
diocesan voluntary aided school). The LA would need good reasons for rejecting any source 
of advice proposed by governors. Under these circumstances, the school would not 
automatically deemed not to be acting in accordance with the advice of the LA with the 
consequences set out above.  
 
However, if no such agreement were reached or the school took advice from an 
unsatisfactory source or did not act in accordance with the advice given by the agreed 
appropriate source, the school would normally be deemed to be acting contrary to the advice 
of the LA and the consequences set out above would apply.  
 
11.5 Health and Safety  
 
In expending the school's budget share, the governing body should have regard to duties 
placed on the LA in relation to health and safety, and the Authority's policy on health and 
safety matters in the management of the budget share. The LA may issue directions to the 
governing body and head teacher of any school under s.39(3) of the School Standards and 
Framework Act 1998. 

 
11.6 Right of attendance for Chief Finance Officer  
 
Governing bodies are required to permit the Chief Finance Officer of the LA, or their 
representative, to attend meetings of the governing body at which any agenda items are 
relevant to the exercise of his or her responsibilities.  
 
The Chief Finance Officer's attendance shall normally be limited to items that relate to issues 
of probity or overall financial management and shall not regarded as routine. Prior notice of 
attendance will normally be given except where it is impracticable to do so.  
 
11.7 Special educational needs  
 
Governing bodies are required to use, in expending their school budget share, their best 
endeavours to secure that special educational needs of pupils in the school are met, in 
accordance with Section 417 of the Education Act 1996 and the SEN Code of Practice. 
Where the governing body fails to meet these duties, the Authority may withdraw financial 
delegation in accordance with Section 51 of the School Standards and Framework Act 1998. 

 
11.8 Whistleblowing  
 
Where a school employee or governor wishes to complain about the financial management 
or financial propriety at the school this should carried out in accordance with the school’s 
Whistleblowing Policy and Procedures. The school; is strongly advised to adopt the 
Council’s Whistleblowing Policy & Procedures. 

 
11.9 Child Protection  
 
Schools sometimes need to release staff to attend child protection case conferences and 
other related events. The LA does not however make any specific payment to schools to 
help meet the costs involved. 
 

Page 69



Page 34 of 55 

 

11.10 Delegation to Schools 
 
The Authority is empowered to delegate selectively and optionally to the governing bodies of 
schools, which have yet to receive delegated budgets. 
 
11.11 Interest on Late Payments 
 
Schools are reminded that all invoices should be paid within the terms and conditions of 
suppliers and that, late payments may attract interest charges, which, will fall to be met from 
the school's budget share. 
 
11.12 Redundancy/early retirement costs 

 
The 2002 Education Act sets out how premature retirement and redundancy costs should 
normally be funded. Further guidance is provided in Appendix C. 
 
  

Page 70



Page 35 of 55 

 

SECTION 12: RESPONSIBILITY FOR REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE  
 
12.1 The authority delegates all funding for repairs and maintenance to schools. Only capital 
expenditure retained by the authority. For these purposes, expenditure may be treated as 
capital only if it fits the definition of capital used by the local authority for financial accounting 
purposes in line with the CIPFA Code of Practice on local authority accounting. Illustrative 
examples of the categories of work which governing bodies are expected to finance from 
their budget are provided in the attached Annex D. 
 
12.2 Voluntary aided governors will continue to be eligible for grant from the DfE in respect 
of their statutory responsibilities and in addition, they will have responsibility for repair and 
maintenance items on the same basis as community schools. 

Page 71



Page 36 of 55 

 

SECTION 13: COMMUNITY FACILITIES POWER  

 

13.1 Application of schemes for financing schools to the community facilities 

power  

 
The schools which, choose to exercise the power conferred by s.27 (1) of the Education Act 
2002 to provide community facilities will be subject to a range of controls. This includes 
those schools who are providing the following types of facilities:  
 
After School Clubs 
Breakfast Clubs  
Childcare Facilities Other income generating activities  
 
The provision of community facilities tends to be where schools are incurring additional costs 
to provide activities, which are funded from fees and grants. 

 
There are a number of limitations, which apply to the use of this power. First, regulations 
made under s.28 (2), if made, can specify activities, which may not be undertaken at all 
under the main enabling power. Secondly, the school is obliged to consult its authority and 
have regard to advice from the authority. Thirdly, the Secretary of State, issues guidance to 
governing bodies about a range of issues connected with exercise of the power, and a 
school must have regard to that. 

 
However, under s. 28(1), the main limitations and restrictions on the power will be those 
contained in schools' own instruments of government, if any; and in maintaining LA's 
scheme for financing schools made under section 48 of the School Standards and 
Framework Act 1998. Paragraph 2 of Schedule 3 to the Education Act 2002 extends the 
coverage of schemes to the powers of governing bodies to provide community facilities.  

 
Schools are therefore subject to prohibitions, restrictions and limitations in the Scheme for 
Financing Schools.  
 
This section of the scheme does not extend to joint-use agreements; transfer of control 
agreements, or agreements between the Authority and schools to secure the provision of 
adult and community learning. Sections 27 and 28 of the Education Act 2002, which explain 
the new provisions, are detailed in Annex D (1). 

 
13.2 School's budget share  
 
The budget share of a school may not be used to fund community facilities -either start-up 
costs or ongoing expenditure -or to meet deficits arising from such activities.  
 
13.3 Mis-management of community facilities funds  
 
The mismanagement of community facilities funds can be grounds for suspension of the 
right to a delegated budget.  
 
13.4 Requirement to consult LA 
 
Section 28(4) of the Education Act 2002 requires that before exercising the community 
facilities power, governing bodies must consult the local education authority, and have 
regard to advice given to them by their LA.  

 

 

Page 72



Page 37 of 55 

 

13.5 Requirement to seek LA advice  
 
Schools are required to seek LA advice in order that both schools and the LA are alerted to 
any potential financial and other operational liabilities. Haringey has adopted a formal 
procedure for considering schools' proposals and this should ensure that, from the outset, 
both parties are aware of all pertinent issues before any resource commitments are entered 
into. Governing bodies must adhere to the following proposal procedures:  

 If a decision is made to enter into a third party arrangement in respect of this 
provision, the governing body must submit a written proposal to LA.  

  Haringey will respond and provide advice to the governing body, depending upon 
the type of agreement, within eight weeks of receipt of the proposal.  

 If it is necessary, the governing body must respond with a revised proposal within six 
weeks.  

 The governing body must then comply with procedures as detailed in the Schools 
Financial Procedures Manual, and this document, when entering into a contract.  

 
All community facilities arrangements are subject to this procedure.  
 
13.6 Requirements relating to the provision of advice 
 
 Haringey is required to provide schools with advice within 8 weeks of being consulted, 
although will seek to offer advice earlier, if possible. Schools are required to inform of any 
action taken following receipt and consideration of Haringey's advice, within 6 weeks of 
receiving such advice.  
 
13.7 Funding agreements with third parties  
 
The provision of community facilities in many schools may be dependent on the conclusion 
of a funding agreement with a third party, which will either be supplying funding or supplying 
funding and taking part in the provision. A very wide range of bodies and organisations are 
potentially involved.  
 
Haringey's requirement in relation to funding agreements with third parties (as opposed to 
funding agreements with  itself) is that any such proposed agreement should be submitted to 
LA for its comments, giving  at least 6 weeks to allow adequate time to consider and 
respond.  

 
Once approved by Haringey the funding agreement may not impose a right of veto for 
Haringey on such agreements, either directly or through requiring a right to countersign the 
agreement. If the third party requires LA consent to the agreement for it to proceed, such a 
requirement and the method by which LA consent is to be signified is a matter for that third 
party, not for the scheme.  

 
13.8 Agreements seriously prejudicial to the interests of the school or of LA 
 
Schools should be aware that, if an agreement has been or is to be concluded against the 
wishes of Haringey, or has been concluded without informing, which in the view of Haringey 
is seriously prejudicial to the interests of the school or of Haringey that may constitute 
grounds for suspension of the right to a delegated budget.  
 
13.9.1 Projects with significant financial risk  
 
Although the LA does not have the right of veto either to funding agreements with third 
parties, or for other proposed uses of the community facilities power. LA may require that in 

Page 73



Page 38 of 55 

 

a specific instance of use of the community facilities power by a governing body, the 
governing body concerned shall arrange to protect the financial interests of the LA. For 
example, this may involve undertaking the activity concerned through the vehicle of a limited 
company formed for the purpose, or by obtaining indemnity insurance for risks associated 
with the project in question. The LA will consider each case individually and advise 
accordingly. This requirement will only be imposed where the LA believes that the proposed 
project carries significant financial risks. 
 
13.9.2 Property considerations  
 
In considering any proposals for the provision of community facilities, LA will need to be 
satisfied regarding the use or change of use of buildings, access, fire and other safety 
aspects. The restrictions on use (where covenants on use bar certain activities or limit the 
use of the building to educational use), provision of additional accommodation by third 
parties and the maintenance responsibilities and liabilities.  
 
13.10 Constraints on the exercise of the community facilities power  
 
Section 28 of the Education Act 2002 provides that the exercise of the community facilities 
power be subject to prohibitions, restrictions and limitations in the Scheme for Financing 
Schools.  
 
13.11 Financial statements  
 
Schools, which exercise the community facilities power, are required to provide Haringey 
every six months, from the commencement date of the project, with a summary statement, in 
a form determined by Haringey. This must show the income and expenditure for the school 
arising from the facilities in question for the previous three months and on an estimated 
basis, for the next six months.  
 
On giving notice to the school that, it believes there to be cause for concern as to the 
school's management of the financial consequences of the exercise of the community 
facilities power, LA will require such financial statements to be supplied every month. If LA 
sees fit, it may also require the submission of a recovery plan for the activity in question.  
 
 Haringey requires such information in order to ensure that schools are not at financial risk. 
Schedule 3 of the Education Act 2002 inserts a new provision into Schedule 15 of the Act to 
make mismanagement of funds received for community facilities a basis for suspension of 
the right to delegation of the budget share.  LA will suspend the right to delegation, if 
necessary.  
 
13.12 Agreements between schools and   
 
These provisions do not preclude the insertion of other provisions in specific funding 
agreements between schools and Haringey as to the financial reporting requirements arising 
from the funding in question.  
 
13.13 Access to school records 
The school is required to grant access to the school's records connected with exercise of the 
community facilities power, in order to facilitate internal and external audit of relevant income 
and expenditure.  
 
13.14 Access to other records  
 

Page 74



Page 39 of 55 

 

Schools are required to grant access to the school’s records connected with exercise of the 
community facilities power, in order to facilitate internal and external audit of relevant income 
and expenditure. In this instance school, records include but are not restricted to all financial 
records and documentation and a register of pupils attending the community facility. 

 
Schools are required in concluding funding agreements with other persons pursuant to the 
exercise of the community facilities power. To ensure that such agreements contain 
adequate provision for access by the LA to the records and other property of those persons 
held on the school premises, or held elsewhere insofar as they relate to the activity in 
question, in order for the authority to satisfy itself as to the propriety of expenditure on the 
facilities in question. For example, third parties should maintain their own register, which is 
available upon request for inspection. 
 
13.15 Retention of income  
 
Schools are permitted to retain net income derived from community facilities except where 
otherwise agree with a funding provider, whether that is Haringey or some other body or 
individual.  
 
Schools are allowed to carry retained net income over from one financial year to the next as 
a separate community facilities surplus. Subject to the agreement of the LA at the end of 
each financial year, schools can transfer all or part of the retained net income to the budget 
share balance. 

 
13.16 Schools ceasing to be maintained  
 
If the school is a community or community special school, and  ceases to maintain the 
school, any accumulated retained income obtained from exercise of the community facilities 
power reverts to  unless otherwise agreed with a funding provider.  
 
13.17 Recovery of funds  
 
If there is a deficit on community facilities and Haringey needs to recover funds to meet third 
party liabilities it may only do so from any accumulated community facilities surplus. If this is 
insufficient, Haringey will have to meet the third party liabilities from its own resources.  
 
This arises from the provision of s.S1A of the School Standards and Framework Act 1998 
(inserted by paragraph 4 of Schedule 3 to the Education Act 2002), which provides that such 
liabilities are part of the expenses of maintaining the school; may be recovered from the 
governing body. The expenditure incurred by the governing body in the exercise of the 
community facilities power may not be met from the budget share unless such a purpose is 
prescribed by regulations made under s SO(3)(b) of the 1998 Act.  
 
13.18 Extension of Health and Safety provisions  
 
The health and safety provisions of the main scheme are extended to the community 
facilities power exercised by schools. These include that the governing body is required to 
have due regard to duties placed on Haringey in relation to health and safety, and 
Haringey's policy on health and safety matters in the management of the budget share.  
 
Schools are reminded that where they directly employ a contractor using delegated funding, 
they must ensure that the contractor is competent, adequately insured and that the 
contractor has an appropriate health and safety policy and arrangements. The contractor 

Page 75



Page 40 of 55 

 

should demonstrate to the school's satisfaction that they have considered all the health and 
safety implications of working on the school site.  

 
Some work commissioned by schools may fall under the requirements of the Construction 
Design and Management Regulations 1994 and schools must ensure that all the 
requirements of these regulations are met.  
 

 
13.19 Criminal records clearance  
 
All staff working with children must have Criminal Records Bureau checks undertaken. 
Governing bodies are responsible for the costs of securing Criminal Records Bureau 
clearance for all adults involved in community activities taking place during the school day. 
Governing bodies would be free to pass on such costs to a funding partner as part of an 
agreement with that partner. 

 
13.20 Schools' responsibilities for insurance arrangements  
 
It is the responsibility of the governing body to make adequate arrangements for insurance 
against risks arising from the exercise of the community facilities power, such insurance 
cannot be funded from the school budget share.  
 
In principle, the insurance issues arising from use of the community facilities power are the 
same as those that already arise from non-school use of school premises. However, a 
school proposing to provide community facilities should, as an integral part of its plans, 
undertake an assessment of the insurance implications and costs, seeking professional 
advice if necessary.  
 
All schools are required to provide information to Haringey to confirm the details of its 
insurance arrangements/cover for any community facilities provision. This enables Haringey 
to check that any insurable interest it may have is covered.  
 
It may be necessary for insurance to be in the joint names of the governing body and LA. All 
schools are required to seek Haringey's advice before finalising any insurance arrangement 
for community facilities.  
 
13.21 LA's insurance responsibility  
 
LA is empowered to undertake its own assessment of the insurance arrangements made by 
a school in respect of community facilities, and if it judges those arrangements inadequate, 
make arrangements itself and charge the resultant cost to the school. Such costs could not 
be charged to the school's budget share. These provisions are necessary in order for 
Haringey to protect itself against possible third party claims.  
 
13.22 Value Added Tax (VAT)  
 
In general, schools may only make use of Haringey's VAT reclaim facility for expenditure on 
community facilities when this is from LA funds and not expenditure from other funds. LA will 
follow H.M. Revenue & Customs guidance (Notice 749 on local authorities) concerning the 
recovery of VAT where schools use donated funds.  
 
The facility for local authorities to reclaim VAT can be used by schools in spending their 
budget shares, which by virtue of s.49 (5) of the School Standards and Framework Act 1998 

Page 76



Page 41 of 55 

 

are the property of Haringey. This facility also applies to funding given by Haringey to 
schools outside the budget share.  
 
Schools should however, seek the advice of  (and the local VAT office) on any issues 
relating to the possible imposition of Value Added Tax on expenditure in connection with 
community facilities; including the use of the local authority VAT reclaim facility.  
Haringey will make further, specific advice available to schools, as appropriate and this will 
be contained in the Schools Financial Procedures Manual.  

 
13.23 School/Local Authority employees  
 
If any member of staff employed by the school or LA in connection with community facilities 
at the school is paid from funds held in the school's own bank account (whether a separate 
account is used for community facilities or not). The school is likely to be held liable for 
payment of income tax and National Insurance, in line with H.M. Revenue & Customs rules.  
 
13.24 Construction industry scheme  
 
Schools are required to abide by procedures issued by the LA in connection with 
Construction Industry Scheme where this is relevant to the exercise of the community 
facilities power. 

 
13.25 Banking arrangements  
 
Where a school opts to provide community facilities, it must operate the same banking 
arrangements, which it uses for its budget share. Schools should maintain a separate bank 
account with adequate internal accounting controls to maintain separation of funds.  
 
13.26 Bank accounts and signatories  
 
The Scheme for Financing Schools continues to apply in respect of banks which may be 
used, signing of cheques, the titles of bank accounts, the contents of bank account 
mandates (except that such mandates may provide that funds for community facilities not 
provided by  are not the property of ), and similar matters.  
 
13.27 Borrowing by schools  
 
Governing bodies are reminded that they must not borrow money without the written consent 
of the Secretary of State. This requirement does not extend to monies lent to schools by 
their maintaining LA. 
 
    
    
    
    
    
    
  
 
   

 
 
 
 

Page 77



Page 42 of 55 

 

 
 
 
 
Appendix A  

Sections 27 and 28 of the Education Act 2002  

Section 27 - Power of governing body to provide community facilities etc.  

(1) The governing body of a maintained school shall have power to provide any facilities 
or services whose provision furthers any charitable purpose for the benefit of-  

(a) pupils at the school or their families, or  

(b) people who live or work in the locality in which the school is situated.  

(2) The power under subsection (1) includes, in particular, power for a governing body 
to-  

(a) incur expenditure,  

(b) enter into arrangements or agreements with any person,  

(c) co-operate with, or facilitate or co-ordinate the activities of, any person, and  

(d) provide staff, goods, services and accommodation to any person.  
 
(3) Subject to the provisions of Chapter 3 of Part 6 of the Education Act 1996 (c. 56) 
(charges in connection with education), a governing body may charge for any services or 
facilities provided under this section.  
 
(4) This section has effect subject to section 28.  
 
Section 28 - Limits on power to provide community facilities etc.  

(1) Section 27(1) does not enable a governing body to do anything which they are 
unable to do by virtue of any prohibition, restriction or limitation on their powers which is 
contained in-  
 
(a) the school's instrument of government, or  
(b) any scheme under section 48 of the School Standards and Framework Act 1998 (c. 
31) (local education authorities' financial schemes) which relates to the school.  
 
(2) Regulations may make provision preventing governing bodies from doing, by virtue of 
section 27(1), anything that is specified, or is of a description specified, in the 
regulations.  
 
(3) A governing body shall exercise the power conferred by section 27(1) only if and to 
the extent that they are satisfied that anything which they propose to do will not to a 
significant extent interfere with the performance of any duty imposed on them by section 
21(2) or by any other provision of the Education Acts.  
 
(4) Before exercising the power under section 27(1):  
(a) governing body shall consult-  
 
(i) the local education authority,  

(ii) the staff of the school, and  

Page 78



Page 43 of 55 

 

(iii) the parents of registered pupils of the school  
 
(b) where the proposed exercise of the power would affect registered pupils of the 
school and the governing body consider it appropriate in view of their age and 
understanding to consult all or some of them, shall consult the registered pupils or such 
of them as the governing body consider it appropriate to consult, and  
 
 (c) shall consult such other persons, as the governing body consider appropriate.  
 
(5) In exercising the power under section 27(1) or consulting under subsection (4), a 
governing body shall have regard-  
 
(a) to any guidance given from time to time (in relation to England) by the Secretary of 
State or (in relation to Wales) by the National Assembly for Wales, and  
 
(b) to any advice given to them from time to time by the local education authority.  
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 79



Page 44 of 55 

 

 
 
 
 
  
Appendix B 

DFE No 
School 

 
 Type 

2002 Belmont Junior School Community Primary 

2003 Belmont Infant School Community Primary 

2004 Bounds Green Junior School Community Primary 

2005 Bounds Green Infant School Community Primary 

2008 Campsbourne Junior School Community Primary 

2009 Campsbourne Infant School Community Primary 

2015 The Devonshire Hill Nursery &  Primary School Community Primary 

2020 Earlsmead Primary School Community Primary 

2022 Highgate Primary School Community Primary 

2025 Lancasterian Primary School Community Primary 

2029 Coldfall Primary School Community Primary 

2031 Tetherdown Primary School Community Primary 

2041 Rokesly Junior School Community Primary 

2042 Rokesly Infant & Nursery School Community Primary 

2045 South Harringay Junior School Community Primary 

2046 South Harringay Infant School Community Primary 

2047 Stamford Hill Primary School Community Primary 

2051 West Green Primary School Community Primary 

2057 Tiverton Primary School Community Primary 

2058 Coleridge Primary School Community Primary 

2062 Welbourne Primary School Community Primary 

2063 Lea Valley Primary School Community Primary 

2065 Ferry Lane Primary School Community Primary 

2072 Rhodes Avenue Primary School Community Primary 

2075 Crowland Primary School Community Primary 

2076 Weston Park Primary School Community Primary 

2077 The Willow Primary School Community Primary 

2078 Alexandra Primary School Community Primary 

2079 Stroud Green Primary School Community Primary 

2080 Earlham Primary School Community Primary 

2082 Lordship Lane Primary School Community Primary 

2083 Bruce Grove Primary School Community Primary 

2084 Risley Avenue Primary School Community Primary 

2085 Muswell Hill Primary School Community Primary 

2088 Seven Sisters Primary School Community Primary 

Page 80



Page 45 of 55 

 

3000 St Aidan's Voluntary Controlled Primary School Community Primary 

3001 The Mulberry Primary School Community Primary 

3302 St Michael's CofE Voluntary Aided Primary School Community Primary 

3303 St James Church of England Primary School Community Primary 

3306 St Mary's CofE Primary School Community Primary 

3500 Our Lady of Muswell Catholic Primary School Community Primary 

3501 St Francis de Sales RC Junior School Community Primary 

3502 St Ignatius RC Primary School Community Primary 

3503 St Mary's Priory RC Junior School Community Primary 

3504 St Paul's RC Primary School Community Primary 

3505 St Mary's Priory RC Infant School Community Primary 

3506 St Peter-in-Chains RC Infant School Community Primary 

3507 St Francis de Sales RC Infant School Community Primary 

3508 St Martin of Porres RC Primary School Community Primary 

3509 St Gildas' Catholic Junior School Community Primary 

3510 St John Vianney RC Primary School Community Primary 

3511 Chestnuts Primary School Community Primary 

3512 North Harringay Primary School Community Primary 

4029 Hornsey School for Girls Community Secondary 

4030 Highgate Wood Secondary School Secondary Secondary 

4032 Fortismere School Secondary Secondary 

4033 Gladesmore Community School Secondary Secondary 

4037 Park View School Secondary Secondary 

 
   
    
    
    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 81



Page 46 of 55 

 

 
 
 
 
Appendix C 
   
RESPONSIBILITY FOR REDUNDANCY AND EARLY RETIREMENT COSTS 

 
This guidance sets out the position relating to the charging of early retirement and 
redundancy costs under the 2002 Education Act and the circumstances in which exceptions 
will be made.  
 
Redundancy Costs 
 
Redundancy costs must be charged to the local authority’s budget unless there is a good 
reason for it not to be centrally funded. 
 
Redundancy costs would be expected to be met from the school’s delegated budget in the 
following circumstances:  

 If a school has decided to offer more generous terms than the authority’s policy; 

 If a school is otherwise acting outside the LA policy; 

 Where the school is making staffing reductions which the LA does not believe are 
necessary to either set a balanced budget or meet the conditions of an agreed deficit 
arrangement; 

 Where staffing reductions arise from a deficit caused by factors within the schools 
control; 

 Where the school has excess surplus balances and no agreed plan to use these; 

 Where a school has refused to engage with the LA’s redeployment policy; 

 Approval in principle of the reorganization has not been sought from the panel in 
advance of the reorganization. 

 
Early Retirement Costs 
 
Premature retirement costs must be charged to the school’s delegated budget unless the 
local authority agrees otherwise for costs to be centrally funded. Haringey does not fund 
pension strain-capital cost for individual.  
 
The default position, therefore, is that premature retirement costs must be charged to the 
school’s delegated budget, while redundancy costs must be charged to the local authority’s 
budget. In the former case, the local authority has to agree otherwise for costs to be centrally 
funded, while in the latter case, there has to be a good reason for it not to be centrally 
funded, and that cannot include having a no redundancy policy.  
 
Charge of premature retirement costs to local authority non-schools budget: 

• Where a school has a long-term reduction in pupil numbers and charging such costs to 
their budget would impact on standards 
• Where a school is closing, does not have sufficient balances to cover the costs and where 
the central Schools Budget does not have capacity to absorb the deficit  

• Where charging such costs to the school’s budget would prevent the school from 
complying with a requirement to recover a licensed deficit within the agreed timescale  

• Where a school is in special measures, does not have excess balances and employment of 
the relevant staff is being/has been terminated as a result of local authority or government 
intervention to improve standards  

Page 82



Page 47 of 55 

 

 
Agreement to charge the local authority’s budget would be subject to a successful 
application for additional support to the Haringey restructure & scrutiny Panel. 
 
Appendix D 
 
REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE OF SCHOOL BUILDINGS AND GROUNDS 

 
 

ILLUSTRATIVE EXAMPLES IN LINE WITH DfE INTERPRETATION OF CIPFA CODE OF 
PRACTICE 
 
 

ELEMENT CAPITAL: AS CIPFA  
CODE OF PRACTICE 

REVENUE: REPAIRS & 
MAINTENANCE 

VA SCHOOLS – 
GOVERNORS 
RESPONSIBILITIES 
(Full Details In DfE 
Document 
“Determination Of 
Financial Liability”)  

 
 

Roofs CAPITAL REVENUE GOVERNORS’ 
RESPONSIBILITIES 

Flat Structure. New (not 
replacement) structure 
 

Repair/replacement of 
small parts of an 
existing structure 
 

New structure and 
repair replacement of 
structure 

 Structure. 
Replacement of all or 
substantial part of an 
existing structure to 
prevent imminent or 
correct actual major 
failure of the structure 

Replace small areas 
of rotten or defective 
timber, make good 
minor areas of spalling 
concrete where 
reinforcing bars 
exposed 
 

Replacement of 
structure 

 Screed / insulation in a 
new building/extension 
 

Repair/replacement of 
screed/ insulation 
where defective. 
 

New screed/insulation 
and repairs 

 Screed / insulation. 
Replacement/repair of 
substantially all. 
Improve effectiveness 
of insulation 

Work to improve 
insulation standards, 
during work to repair/ 
replace small areas of 
roof. 
 

Replacement/repair of 
screed/insulation 

 Finish on new build. 
Replacement of 
all/substantially all on 
existing roof 
 
 
 
 

Replacement of roof 
finish on existing 
building, to under 
capital value limit.  Re-
coating chippings to 
improve life 
expectancy 
 

Finish on new build. 
Replacement of roof 
finish on existing 
building.  Re-coating 

Page 83



Page 48 of 55 

 

 

 Edge Trim/ Fascia on 
new build 
 

Repairs/ replacement. 
(uPVC) Repainting. 
 

Edge Trim/fascia on 
new build and 
repairs/replacement/ 
repainting 

 Edge Trim/ Fascia, 
Replacement of 
all/substantially all on 
existing roof 
 

Repairs/ replacement. 
(uPVC) Repainting. 
 

Replacement of edge 
Trim/Fascia on existing 
building 

 Drainage on new build 
 
 

Clearing out gutters 
and downpipes. 
Replacement/repair/ 
repainting of/ 
individual 
gutters/pipes 
 

Drainage on new 
building and 
repairs/replacement/ 
repainting 
(NOT cleaning 
gutters/downpipes) 
 

 Other e.g. Flashings, 
Rooflights on new 
build Replacement of 
all/substantially all on 
existing roof 
 

Repair/  Replacement/ 
cleaning of individual 
items 

Flashings/rooflights on 
new building and 
repair/replacement 
(NOT cleaning) 
 

Pitched Structure. New (not 
replacement) structure 
 

Repair/replacement of 
small parts of an 
existing structure 

Structure of new roof 
and all repairs EXCEPT 
trusses (i.e. internal 
repairs) 
 

 Structure. 
Replacement of all or 
substantial part of an 
existing structure to 
prevent imminent or 
correct actual major 
failure of the structure 
 

Replace/ repair small 
areas of rotten/ 
defective joists, 
rafters, purlins etc. 
Not complete trusses 

Replacement of internal 
structure EXCEPT 
trusses (i.e. internal 
repairs) 

 Insulation in a new 
building/extension 
 

Repair/replacement/ 
increasing thickness 
of insulation in an 
existing roof 
 

Insulation in new 
building and 
repair/replacement. 

 Insulation. 
Replacement /repair of 
substantially all. 
Improve  insulation to 
current standards 
 
 
 

 Repair/replacement or 
improve insulation 

 Roof finish in a new 
building/extension, 
replacement of 
all/substantially all on 
existing roof 

Replace missing/ 
damaged 
 

Finish in new 
building/extension and 
repair/replacement in 
existing building 
 

Page 84



Page 49 of 55 

 

 

 Bargeboards/ Fascias 
in a new 
building/extension, 
replacement of 
all/substantially all on 
existing roof 
 

Repairs/ replacement/ 
Repainting 

Bargeboards/fascias in 
new building/extension 
and 
repairs/replacement/ 
repainting in existing 
building 

 Drainage in a new 
building/extension 
 

Clearing out gutters 
and downpipes. 
Replacement/repairs 
of individual 
pipes/gutters 
 

Drainage in new 
building/extension and 
repair/replacement. 
(NOT cleaning 
guttering or downpipes) 
 

 Drainage. 
Replacement of 
all/substantially all on 
existing roof 
 

 Drainage replacement 
in existing roof. 

 Other e.g. Flashings, 
Roof windows in a 
new 
building/extension, 
replacement of 
all/substantially all on 
existing roof 
 
 

Repair/ Replacement 
/cleaning 
 

Flashings, roof 
windows in new 
building/ extension and 
repair replacement 
(NOT cleaning) in 
existing roof 
 

Other Provide new covered 
link etc. between 
existing buildings 
Rebuild or 
substantially repair 
structure of existing 
covered link 
Add porch etc. to 
existing building 
Rebuild or 
substantially repair 
structure of existing 
porch 

Minor repairs, 
maintenance to 
existing covered link 
Minor repairs, 
maintenance to 
existing  

Provide new covered 
link and repairs to 
existing. 
(NOT cleaning) 
Re-build or repair 
structure of existing 
covered link. 
Add new porch and 
minor repairs to 
existing  
Re-build or repair 
existing porch. 

Floors CAPITAL REVENUE GOVERNORS’ 
RESPONSIBILITIES 

Ground Floor Structure and dpc in 
new building 

Repair/replacement of 
small parts of an 
existing structure 

Structure and dpc of 
new building and repair 
replacement to existing 
structure 
 

 Structure and dpc - 
Replacement of all or 
substantial part of an 
existing structure to 

  

Page 85



Page 50 of 55 

 

prevent imminent or 
correct actual major 
failure of the structure 
 

 Screed and finish in 
new build, 
replacement of 
all/substantially all on 
existing floor - e.g. 
replacement of most 
carpets/ tiles in a room  
 

Replacement and 
repair of screed and 
finishes/ Replacement 
of 
mats/ matwells. 
Maintenance e.g. 
revarnishing wooden 
floors. 
 

Provide screed and 
finish in new buildings 
(NOT repairs to 
finishes, matwells etc.) 

Upper Floor 
 

Structure - as ground 
floor 
 
 

As ground floor Structure of new 
building and 
replacement of existing 
structure 

 Screed and Finish - as 
ground floor 
 

Repairs of finishes/ 
Replacement - as 
ground floor 
 

As ground floor 

Ceilings 
 

CAPITAL REVENUE GOVERNORS’ 
RESPONSIBILITIES 

Top/ only storey 
 

Suspension Repair/ replacement 
incl. From water 
damage, & necessary 
decoration 
 

Provision,  (NOT repair 
or replacement) 

 Membrane 
 

 Provision,  (NOT repair 
or replacement) 
 

 Fixed 
 

Repair/ replacement 
inc. from water 
damage 
 

Provision,  (NOT repair 
or replacement) 

 Access panels 
 

Repair/ replacement Provision,  (NOT repair 
or replacement) 
 

Lower storeys 
 

Suspension Repair/ replacement 
 

Provision,  (NOT repair 
or replacement) 

 Membrane  Provision,  (NOT repair 
or replacement) 
 

    

 Fixed Repair/ replacement 
 

Provision,  (NOT repair 
or replacement) 
 

    

All Specialist removal/ 
replacement of 
damaged/  disturbed 
Asbestos based 
materials, planned or 
emergency 

Inspection/ air testing 
Applying sealant coats 
to asbestos surfaces 
for protection 

Removal/replacement 
of damaged/disturbed 
asbestos EXCEPT 
where part of repair 
project. 

Page 86



Page 51 of 55 

 

 

External walls 
 

CAPITAL REVENUE GOVERNORS’ 
RESPONSIBILITIES 

Masonry/ 
cladding 
 

Structure 
Underpinning/ 
propping for new build 

Repairs 
Preventive measures 
e.g. tree removal 

Structure, 
underpinning/ propping 
of new building and 
repairs,  (NOT tree 
removal unless part of 
clearing new site) 
 

 External Finish on new 
build 
 

Repair/replacement of 
small parts of an 
existing structure. e.g. 
repointing/ recladding 
a proportion of a wall 
where failure has 
occurred. 

External finish on new 
building and 
repairs/replacement of 
existing structure 
including re-pointing/re-
cladding 

 External Finish on 
existing build where 
needed to prevent 
imminent or correct 
actual major failure of 
the structure. e.g. 
repointing/recladding 
work affecting most of 
a building 
/replacement build 

 External finish on 
existing building 
including correcting of 
structure. 

Windows and 
Doors 
 

Framing - new build 
 
 

Repair/ replacement 
of individual frames. 
Repainting frames 
 

New window frames 
and doors in new 
building and 
repairs/replacement  
(NOT replacement/ 
repair/ re-painting of 
internal doors or 
windows) 
 

 Framing - structural 
replacement 
programme 

Repair/ replacement 
of individual windows. 
Repainting frames 
 

New windows in 
replacement 
programme 
 

 Glazing - new build 
 

Replacing broken 
glass 

Glazing new building 
and replace broken 
glass. 

 Glazing 
Upgrading existing 
glazing  

 Upgrading existing 
glazing 

 Ironmongery 
Improved security 
 

Repair/ replacement, 
upgrading locks etc. 

Ironmongery to improve 
security and 
repair/replacement.  
 

 Jointing including 
mastic joints 
 

 Jointing 

 Internal and external Internal  and external Internal and external 

Page 87



Page 52 of 55 

 

decorations to new 
build 

decoration to include 
cleaning down and 
preparation. 
 

decoration of new 
provision, external re-
decoration 
(NOT internal re-
decoration) 
 

Masonry 
chimneys 
 

Structure  Structure of chimneys 

 Jointing including 
expansion and mortar 
joints/ pointing/ DPC 
 

Repair/ re-pointing Jointing/Pointing and 
DPC of chimneys and 
repair/re-pointing. 
 
 

Internal walls 
 

CAPITAL REVENUE GOVERNORS’ 
RESPONSIBILITIES 

Solid Complete including 
various internal 
finishes, linings and 
decorations 

Repairs and 
redecoration to 
internal plaster/ linings 
tiles, pin boards etc.  

New walls & finishes, 
(Not repair/ 
replacement) 

 Refurbishment and 
alterations 
 

Minor alterations  

Partitions Complete structure 
including linings, 
framing, glazing, 
decoration etc. 
 

Repairs and 
redecoration. 

New partitions, (Not 
repair/ replacement) 

 Refurbishment and 
alterations 
 

Minor alterations  

Doors & 
Screens 
 

Framing/ Screens/ 
Doors to new buildings 
including glazing, 
ironmongery, jointing 
and internal 
decorations 

Internal maintenance 
and redecoration. 
Repair/ replacement 
of defective doors and 
screens 
 
 

Provision of new, (Not 
repair/ replacement) 

All Glazing to meet 
statutory Health & 
Safety requirements 
 

Replacement of 
broken glass 

New glazing and 
replacement of broken 
glass, (Not internal 
window repairs) 

Sanitary 
Services 
 

CAPITAL REVENUE GOVERNORS’ 
RESPONSIBILITIES 

Lavatories 
 

In new buildings 
provision of all toilet 
fittings, waste 
plumbing and internal 
drainage. 
 

Repair/ replacement 
of damaged sanitary 
ware, fittings, waste 
plumbing etc. 

Provision. (Not repair/ 
replacement of 
damaged sanitary 
ware) 

 Large scale toilet 
refurbishment 
 

Small areas of 
refurbishment 

Provision / 
refurbishment (Not 
replacement of 

Page 88



Page 53 of 55 

 

damaged sanitary 
ware) 

 Provision of disabled 
facilities, and 
specialist facilities 
related to pupils with 
statements 
 

Repair/ replacement 
of damaged fittings, 
waste plumbing etc. 

Provision, (Not repair/ 
replacement of 
damaged fittings etc.) 

Kitchens Kitchens in new 
buildings complete 
with fittings, 
equipment, waste 
plumbing and internal 
drainage. Internal 
finishes and 
decorations 

Maintain kitchen to 
requirements of LA 
 
Cleaning out drainage 
 
Redecoration 
 
Repairs 
 
Repairs/replacement 
parts 

 

Mechanical 
services 
 

CAPITAL REVENUE GOVERNORS’ 
RESPONSIBILITIES 

Heating/ hot 
water 

Complete heating and 
hot water systems to 
new projects, including 
fuel, storage, controls, 
distribution, flues etc. 
 

General maintenance 
of all boiler house 
plant including 
replacement of 
defective parts.   
Regular cleaning. 
Energy saving 
projects 
 

Provision of complete 
system, (Not repair/ 
replacement or 
maintenance) 

 Safe removal of old/ 
damaged asbestos 
boiler and pipework 
insulation, where risk 
to Health & Safety. 
 

Monitoring systems 
 
 
Health & safety issues 

 

 Planned replacement 
of old boiler/ controls 
systems past the end 
of their useful life 
 
Emergency 
replacement of boiler 
plant/systems 
 

Replacement of 
defective parts 

 

Cold water  
 

Provision of cold water 
services, storage 
tanks, distribution, 
boosters, hose reels 
etc. in major projects 
 

Maintenance and 
repair/ replacement of 
defective parts such 
as servicing pipes.  
Annual servicing of 
cold-water tanks. 

Provision of complete 
system, (Not repair/ 
replacement or 
maintenance) 

Gas 
 

Distribution on new 
and major 

Repairs, maintenance 
and gas safety 

 

Page 89



Page 54 of 55 

 

refurbishments, 
terminal units 
 

All servicing 

Ventilation 
 
 

Mechanical ventilation/ 
air conditioning to 
major projects 
 

Provision of local 
ventilation. Repair/ 
replacement of 
defective systems and 
units 

Provision, (Not repair/ 
replacement) 

Other 
 

Swimming pool plant 
and its complete 
installation, including 
heat recovery systems 
 

Repair/ replacement 
of parts to plant, 
pumps and controls.  
Water treatment 
equipment and all 
distribution pipework. 
Simple heat recovery 
systems. 
Solar heating plant 
and equipment. 

If Governors provided. 
 
 
 

Electrical 
services 
 

CAPITAL REVENUE GOVERNORS’ 
RESPONSIBILITIES 

General 
 

Main switchgear and 
distribution in major 
projects. 
 

Testing/ replacement 
of distribution boards.  
The repair and 
maintenance of all 
switchgear and 
interconnecting cables 
including that in 
temporary buildings. 

Provision, (Not repair/ 
replacement or 
maintenance) 

 Replacement of 
obsolete and 
dangerous wiring 
systems, including 
distribution boards 

All testing, earthing 
and bonding to meet 
Health & Safety.  All 
servicing. 

 

Power 
 

Control gear, 
distribution, fixed 
equipment, protection 
etc. 

All testing, repair and 
replacement of  small 
items of equipment 

Provision, (Not repair/ 
replacement) 

Lighting 
 

Provision of luminaires 
and emergency 
 

Replacement of 
luminaires, all testing, 
adjustments and  
improvements to 
emergency 

Provision, (Not repair/ 
replacement) 

Other 
 

Lightning protection in 
new build 

Repair/ replacement Provision and repair 

 Alarm systems, CCTV, 
lifts/ hoists etc.,   

Repair and 
maintenance 

Provision, (Not repair or 
maintenance) 

 New installation of 
communication 
systems, radio/ TV, 
call, telephone, data 
transmission, IT etc. 
and provision in new 
build. 

Repair/ replacement/ 
maintenance, 
including all door 
access systems 

 

Page 90



Page 55 of 55 

 

External 
Works 
 

CAPITAL REVENUE GOVERNORS’ 
RESPONSIBILITIES 

Pavings 
 

Provision of new 
roads, car parks, 
paths, court, terraces, 
play pitches, steps 
and handrails, as part 
of major project, 
including disabled 
access 
 

Maintenance and 
repair 
Car park and 
playground markings. 

Provision if part of 
statutory proposal 
project. Not repair or 
maintenance 
 
 
 
Provision and repair of 
ramps and steps. 
 
 

Miscellaneous 
 

Provision of walls, 
fencing, gates and 
ancillary buildings as 
part of major project  
 

Maintenance and 
repair of all perimeter/ 
boundary/ retaining 
walls, fencing and 
gates.  

 

Drainage 
 

Drains, soakaways, 
inspection chambers 
and sewage plant as 
part of new projects 
 

Maintenance and 
repair of drains, 
gullies, grease traps 
and manholes 
between buildings and 
main sewers.  
Cleaning of the above 
and unblocking as 
necessary. 
 

Foul drainage plus 
external gutters and 
drainpipes. Not 
maintenance 

Open air pools 
 

Structure, Hygiene/ 
safety in new build  

Hygiene, cleaning, 
maintenance and 
repairs, including 
replacement parts. 
Simple energy saving 
systems. 
 

If governors provided. 

Services 
distribution 
 

Heating mains 
gas mains 
water mains 
electricity mains, 
renewal of any above. 
 

Annual servicing Provision grant aided 
but not for repair 

 
 
 

Page 91



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Schools Forum 22nd February 2018 – Schools Financial Value Standards  
 

1 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Report to Haringey Schools Forum – 22nd February 2018 
 

1. Report Title: School Financial Value Standards 
 

 
Author:   
 
Kamaljit Kaur – Finance Business Partner - Schools and Learning 
Contact: 0208 489 5232  Email: kamaljit.kaur@haringey.gov.uk 
 

 
Purpose: To inform the Forum of the update for the 2017-18 Guidance 
for Schools Financial Value Standards. 
 

 
Recommendations: 
 
This is suggested timetable to ensure completion of the SFVS by 30 
April 2018.  

 

 
1. Introduction 
 
1.1. The SFVS applies to all Local Authority maintained schools, nurseries and 

pupil referral units. It does not apply to academies. 
 

1.2. The schools financial value standard (SFVS) is a mandatory requirement for 
local authority maintained schools. The SFVS has been designed with 
schools to help them in managing their finances and to give assurance that 
they have secure financial management in place. 

   
1.3. The SFVS is a self-assessment undertaken by maintained schools to 

evidence the effective financial management of their resources. The SFVS 

Agenda Item 10 

 

Report Status 
 
For information/note     
For consultation & views  

For decision    

  

Page 93 Agenda Item 10

mailto:kamaljit.kaur@haringey.gov.uk


 

Schools Forum 22nd February 2018 – Schools Financial Value Standards  
 

2 

 

 

 

has been designed with schools to help them in managing their finances and 
to give assurance that they have secure financial management in place. 

 
1.4. The SFVS helps schools to manage their finances and to provide Assurance 

to the local authority that they have secure financial management in place. 
 

2. What do schools need to do? 
 
2.1. The guidance applies to: 

 governing bodies of maintained schools 

 management committees of pupil referral units 

 local authorities 

 other interested parties 
 

2.2. The document comprises of a series of 25 questions that must be answered 
by school, discussed at governors’ meeting and signed by the chair of 
Governors. 
 

2.3. The questions, which form the standard, are in sections A to D. Each 
question requires an answer of ‘yes’, ‘in part, or ‘no’. 

 
2.4. If the answer is ‘yes’, the comments column can be used to indicate the main 

evidence on which the governing body based its answer 
 

2.5. If the answer is ‘no’ or ‘in part’, the column should contain a very brief 
summary of the position and proposed remedial action 
 

2.6. In Section E, governors or management committees should summarise 
remedial actions and the timetable for reporting. Governors or management 
committees should ensure that each action has a specified deadline and an 
agreed owner. Governors or management committees must monitor the 
progress of these actions to ensure that all actions are cleared within 
specified deadlines. 

 
2.7. The school must send a copy of the signed standard to their local authority’s 

finance department. 
 

3. The Role of Local Authorities 
 

3. Local authorities will use schools’ SFVS returns to inform their programme of 
financial assessment and audit. The SFVS will not externally assessed. Local 
authority and other auditors will have access to the standard, and when the 
audit is conduct, they can check whether the self-assessment is in line with 
their own judgement. Auditors should make the governing body, the 
management committee and the local authority aware of any major 

Page 94



 

Schools Forum 22nd February 2018 – Schools Financial Value Standards  
 

3 

 

 

 

discrepancies in judgements. Auditors should also ensure that all actions 
been addressed before a SFVS review takes place for another year. 
 

4. Support notes are available for each question, which governing bodies can 
use if they wish. The notes provide clarification of the questions, examples of 
good practice and information on further support to assist schools in 
addressing specific issues. Please see the link below 

 
 

Schools financial value standard guidance: 2017 to 2018  
 
 

 
 

Page 95

https://www.gov.uk/guidance/schools-financial-value-standard-and-assurance-sfvs#schools-financial-value-standard-guidance-2017-to-2018


This page is intentionally left blank



 

1 

 

  
 

 
 

 
Report to Haringey Schools Forum – 22 February 2018 
 

 
Report Title: Restructure and Scrutiny Panel 

 
Author:  Eveleen Riordan, Joint AD, Schools and Learning 
 
Contact:  tel Email: 020 8489 3607/eveleen.riordan@haringey.gov.uk 

 
Purpose: Update on work of the Restructure and Scrutiny Panel from 
September 2017 to the current time 

 
Recommendations: Not applicable 
 
 

 
In July 2017 a paper was presented to Schools Forum that proposed the 
setting up of a Restructure and Scrutiny Panel to consider, support and 
challenge in the following areas: 
 

 Any applications for a restructure where there was an expected 
redundancy cost to the Local Authority; 

 Applications for Licensed Deficits; 

 Applications for schools in financial difficulty; 

 Any other matters relating to financial support in our schools. 
 
Schools Forum agreed the paper and its recommendations and supported 
officers’ views that the panel would allow for robust and transparent 
consideration of financial matters relating to schools and give certainty to our 
schools in how and when such matters could be determined.  
 
The panel consists of Head teachers across the primary and secondary 
phases and those Heads represent a mix of schools in terms of buying HR 
advice from within Haringey or seeking this advice outside of Haringey.  
Officers are also represented on the panel from the following service areas: 
Schools and Learning, Schools Finance and HR.  for the purposes of the 
consideration of any applications for schools in financial difficulty, further 
panel members were sought from Schools Forum, including a forum member 
with an Early Years background. 
 
The panel has now convened on five separate occasions (consecutive 
months from September 2017 to January 2018), with further panels to follow 

Agenda Item  
11 

Report Status 
 
For information/note    
For consultation & views  

For decision    

  

Page 97 Agenda Item 11

mailto:3607/eveleen.riordan@haringey.gov.uk


 

2 

 

monthly up to and including July 2017.  Below is a summary of the 
applications that the panel has considered to date. 
 

Date of 
Panel 

Type of 
application – 
restructure/ 
licensed 
deficit/financial 
difficulty/other 

Decision Notes  Maximum 
Cost 

27/09/2017 Restructure Approved Approved retrospectively £41,132 
 

27/09/2017 Restructure Approved Approved retrospectively £17,239 
 

27/09/2017 Restructure Rejected   

27/09/2017 Restructure Rejected   

27/09/2017 Restructure Rejected   

18/10/2017 Restructure Approved Reconsideration of amended 
application from 27/09/2017 

£93,205.60 
 

18/10/2017 Restructure Rejected   

06/12/2017 Restructure Approved Subject to clarification on 
indemnity insurance from HR 
provider and to a re-
presentation following 
consultation on the proposed 
restructure.  

£272,698 
 

17/01/2018 Financial 
Difficulty 

Rejected   

17/01/2018 Financial 
Difficulty 

Rejected Application to be reconsidered 
on 21/02/2018 

 

 

     

TOTAL    £424,274.60 

 
Full details of the future panel meetings and the process for applying can be 
viewed at http://www.haringey.gov.uk/children-and-families/schools-and-
education/schools-hr/restructure-and-scrutiny-panel 
 
 
 
 

Page 98

http://www.haringey.gov.uk/children-and-families/schools-and-education/schools-hr/restructure-and-scrutiny-panel
http://www.haringey.gov.uk/children-and-families/schools-and-education/schools-hr/restructure-and-scrutiny-panel


1 
 

  

 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Report to Haringey Schools Forum – 22nd February 2018 
 

 
Report Title: Schools Forum Work Plan 2017-18 Academic Year. 
 

 
Author:   
 
Kamaljit Kaur, Finance Business Partner – Schools 
Telephone: 020 8489 1263      Email: kamaljit.kaur@haringey.gov.uk 

 

 
Purpose: To inform the Forum of the updated work plan for the 2017-18 
academic year and provide members with an opportunity to add 
additional items. 
 

 
Recommendations: 
 
That the updated work plan for the 2017-18 academic year is noted.  

 

 
 

1. Schools Forum  
 
1.1. It is good practice for Schools Forum to maintain a work plan so that 

members ensure that key issues are considered in a robust and timely 
way.   
 

1.2. Members of the Forum are asked to consider whether there are any 
additional issues that should be added to the work plan for the next 
Academic Year. 

 
1.3. This work plan will be included on the agenda for each future meeting so 

that members are able to review progress and make appropriate 
updates.  

Agenda Item 12 

 

Report Status 
 
For information/ note      
For consultation & views  

For decision    

  

Page 99 Agenda Item 12

mailto:kamaljit.kaur@haringey.gov.uk


2 
 

Haringey Schools Forum - Work Plan Academic Year 2017-18 
 

May 2018 

 Arrangements for the education of pupils with special educational 
needs 

 Administrative arrangements for the allocation of central 
government grants paid to schools via the authority 

 Early Help and Preventative services update 

 Update from working parties 

 Update from Tuition Service 
 

July 2018. 

 Dedicated Schools Budget Outturn 2017-18 

 Outcome of Internal Audit Programme 2017-18 

 Forum Membership 

 Work plan 2019-20 

 Update from working parties 

Page 100


	Agenda
	4 MINUTES OF THE MEETINGS OF  17 JANUARY 2018
	6 2018/19 DEDICATED SCHOOLS BUDGET
	item 6 DSG Appendix 1

	7 THE SCHOOLS INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRAMME
	8 2017 -18 GROWTH FUND UPDATE
	9 SCHEME FOR FINANCING SCHOOLS
	10 SCHOOLS FINANCIAL VALUE STANDARDS
	11 UPDATE FROM RESTRUCTURE SCRUTINY PANEL
	12 WORK PLAN 2017/18

